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Name
Registered Head Office
Operational Headquarters

Web Site

e-mail address
Registered No.
Type of Business

GENERAL INFORMATION

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

68/2 Patipat Road, Taladyai, Phuket 83000 Thailand

Aoluk Branch:

HQ Offices and Siam Factory: 258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road,

Aoluk, Krabi 81110 Tel: 075-634-634, Facsimile: 075-681-124

Plai Phraya Branch:

TOPI Factory: 231 PlaiPhraya-Pasaeng Road, Plaipaya, Krabi 81160
Tel: 075-652-066-8, Facsimile: 075-652-067

Lamthap Branch:

Lamthap Factory: 142 Moo 1 Tambol Toongsaitong, Lamthap District,
Krabi 81120 Tel & Facsimile: 075-618-141

www.univanich.com

info@univanich.com

0107543000066

Oil palm plantations and crushing mills, oil palm research and seed
production. The Company's main products comprise:

1. Crude Palm Oil ("CPO")

2. Crude Palm Kernel Oil ("PKO")

3. Palm Kernels ("PK")

4. Palm Kernel Cake ("PKC")

5. Hybrid Oil Palm Seeds and Seedlings

Registered Capital 94,000,000 common shares
Registered Paid-up Capital = Baht470 million
Par Value per Share Baht 5.00
Other References
Share Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited
62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 7th Floor, Rachadapisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110
Telephone: 0-2229-2800 Facsimile 0-2359-1262-3
Auditor Mrs Suwannee Bhuripanyo Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
No. 3371 of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited 15th Floor,
Bangkok City Tower, 179/74-80 South Sathorn Road, Bangkok 10120
Telephone 0-2344-1000, 0-2286-9999
Facsimile 0-2286-0500, 0-2286-0600
Provident Fund AIA Munkhong Registered Provident Fund
Investor Relations
Name Position Telephone E-mail
Mr John Clendon Managing Director 075634634 Ext111  john.clendon@univanich.com
Mr Anucha Supakorn Commercial Manager 075 634 634 Ext 222 anucha.s@univanich.com
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COMPANY PROFILE

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited was established on 26th December 1995 as an amalgamation of

three of Thailand's pioneer palm oil companies. The three companies were:

e Thai Oil Palm Industry and Estate Company Limited,

o Siam Palm Oil and Refinery Industry Company Limited,
e Hup Huat Palm Oil Industry Company Limited.

Univanich is one of Thailand's leading producers of crude palm oil ("CPO") and crude palm kernel oil ("PKO").

Palm oils are important ingredients in the manufacture of cooking oils and salad oils, margarines and shortening,

snack foods, icecreams, soaps, shampoos and cosmetics. Biodiesel and Biofuels are rapidly expanding new uses of

palm oil. A byproduct from the production of PKO is palm kernel cake ("PKC") which is used in animal feeds.

The main features of the Company's business are as foll

Univanich operates oil palm plantations in Krabi and Suratthani Provinces of Southern Thailand, with a
planted area in 2007 of 39,058 rai (6,249 hectares) including 4,451 rai (712 hectares) immature area. The
first plantations were established in 1969 and replanting of a new generation of palms commenced in 1992.
The Company has now achieved a balanced age profile of palms with approximately 4% of the area
routinely replanted each year.

In 2007, the Company's own plantations produced 14.8% of the fresh fruit bunches ("FFB") processed
by the Companys factories, with 85.2% of FFB being purchased from outgrower farmers. The overall
planted area of oil palms in Thailand is expanding rapidly and it is this expansion of small-holder plantings
that is fueling the Company's long-term growth.

Univanich has three palm oil crushing mills and two palm kernel crushing plants, all located in Krabi
Province. In 2007, Univanich factories processed 687,212 tonnes of FFB and 38,167 tonnes of palm
kernels (PK).

Univanich operates a palm oil exporting facility at the deep-water port of Laemphong in Krabi Province. In
2007, by volume, 82.0% of the Company's sales of crude palm oils were exported to customers in Asia
and Europe.

The Univanich Oil Palm Research Centre (OPRC) is a leader in oil palm research in Thailand. The Company's
advanced palm breeding programme produces high yielding hybrid seeds for our own replanting programme
and for sale to oil palm growers, both locally and overseas. In 2006, the company commissioned Thailand's
first oil palm tissue culture laboratory to produce clonal palms in support of the oil palm breeding programme.

Univanich employs 1,080 people and is professionally managed to an international standard established
during 15 years of joint venture with Unilever PLC. From 1983 to 1998, when Unilever held a 51%
shareholding in Univanich, the business was managed through Unilever's Plantations and Plant Science
Group, based in Cambridge, UK.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 25th November 2003 under the
abbreviation UVAN.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

gmsmamiﬁu (@HUIN) Financial Status (Baht millions) --‘l
AUNTNYTIN Total assets 1,241 1,333 1,214 1,446 1,580
Qﬂﬁﬁmim(q “Vl%) Total accounts receivable, net 63 67 71 64 231
NAu 9113 uazqﬂﬂim Property, plant & equipment, net 655 891 948 923 974
UHUAUIIN Total liabilities 190 160 124 160 165
mumm@ﬁanuim Total shareholders' equity 1,051 1,173 1,090 1,286 1,415

walszneums (@MuUIN) Operating Performance (Baht millions) --l
578'1991AM e Sales 1,955 2,549 2,112 2,863 4,497
51‘&1]1@15’;11 Total revenues 1,959 2,552 2,118 2,870 4,506
ﬂEJ"tHEJi’m Total expenses 1,545 2,158 1,909 2,469 3,978
m“liﬁuumu Gross proﬁt margin 545 544 358 564 678
m‘liﬂauwnmmm'lﬂumuﬂﬂa Earnings before income tax 414 394 209 401 528
mﬁﬁu"lﬂﬁﬁuﬂﬂa Corporate income tax 14 9 9 23 23
mlsqnF Net profit 400 385 200 378 505

s e
m'ls (1JWI/‘HL!) Earnings (Baht/Share) 4.76* 4.10 2.13 4.02 5.37
5 mﬂmauuﬂuwa (mwnu) Dividend Declared (Baht/Share) 3.50% 300 200 275  4.00#
uammmm%@mwu (‘]JWI/‘H‘N) Book Value (Baht/Share) 12.49* 1247 11.60 13.68 15.05
m“limnmaiw"lmm Net Profit margin (%) 2043 1510 945 1318 1121
ammauﬁmvmam Current ratio (Times) 3.88 3.77 3.44 5.16 522
ammauﬁmwmmmum Qulck ratlo (Times) 3.15 2.50 2.63 3.93 4.00
ﬂmwamjmmuﬂmaumwmmmafJ (%) Return On Assets (ROA) (%) 41.12  30.64 1639 30.16 34.93
R 1wasﬂammu@mmmmwnwumaﬂ (%) Return on shareholders' equity (ROE) (%) 4985 3466 17.68 31.84 3741
amﬁmuwuﬁuﬂamummwaawu (wn) Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 0.18 0.14 0.11 0.12 0.12

Yy Y

Higme  * mmmmnmmuwummaﬂ 84,134,076 wu Fanoungoniolupaandnnines oy 82,851,200 {1
ay wuwmmﬂmwamﬂiuﬁmwaﬂmwﬂumaquﬁﬂmﬂu 2546 91UIU 94,000,000 wu
# UTHNA 'lmwuuﬂuwmwmnma”lﬂuaa“lu’ommua” 2.50 UM “l,umaunumauuavmauﬁmmu 2550
ay ﬁ]“"ﬂwNuﬂuWm?ﬂﬁﬂﬂwiuﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁua‘” 1.50 1 lwdeu wgua1aw 2551 Favz ma‘lﬂiuaummﬂ
‘VI“]JS“”’]flJNﬂ‘EJ‘Hu

Note : * based on weighted average 84,134,076 shares, which follows the increase from 82,851,200 shares to 94,000,000 shares at
the time of IPO in November 2003.

# Interim dividend totalling Baht 2.50 per share have been paid in September and December 2007, with a final dividend
of Baht 1.50 per share proposed to be paid in May 2008, subject to shareholder approval.
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

Farmers around the world are starting to enjoy better produce prices after many years of steady decline.
During 2007, prices of all major agricultural commodities began to increase and we expect this trend to continue into
the coming year. Thailand's oil palm growers benefited from this trend with the average price of crude palm oil
increasing from Baht 16.0 in 2006 to around Baht 24.0 per kg in 2007. In real terms however, adjusted for inflation,
we note that this improved average price is still below what producers received 25 years ago.

Much of the credit for these improved agricultural prices must go to the WTO and the resulting expansion of
world trade. This has led to rapid economic growth in many developing economies, including China, India and
Indonesia which together account for 40% of the world's population. Rapid growth in these developing economies
has seen world consumption of edible oils and fats increase from 120 million tonnes in 2002, to 153 million tonnes in
2007. In China alone, consumption over the past five years has increased from 15.8 kg to 21.7 kg per person. We
anticipate that this high rate of growth in vegetable oil consumption is likely to continue and that the main crop to meet
this growing demand will be oil palms.

As we enter the 2008 season there are welcome signs of a strong recovery in Thailand's palm oil production.
Our own plantations are already returning to normal productivity after a year of depressed production in 2007, and
with new areas coming into production we expect Thailand's 2008 palm oil production to increase by 38% to around
1,450,000 tonnes. Domestic consumption of palm oil is also expected to increase sharply. In addition to normal food
consumption of about 850,000 tonnes per year, we expect that there will be additional demand of 350,000 tonnes
from Thailand's new biodiesel industry. The local oil palm industry should have no difficulty in meeting this com-
bined food and fuel requirement totalling about 1,200,000 tonnes and we see a continuing need to develop export
markets for Thailand's expanding surplus.

During the past year the Univanich plantation area has been

expanded by small acquisitions and we have also been busy develop- RMrtonne
4,500

World CPO Price in 2007

ing new parts of our business. Our seeds business is growing strongly,
especially in overseas markets where there is increasing recognition 4,00 |
of'the very high quality of Univanich hybrid oil palm seeds. On the il
bio-energy front, construction of two biogas power plants has been

successfully completed and we now await regulatory approval before 9% |
income from these innovative projects can be realised in first half ., |
2008. We see continuing growth opportunities in these new

business areas and a third power plant of 2 megawatt capacity will be S

constructed in 2008. 1,500

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to 9%
congratulate our management team on another year of very good

achievement. I would also take this opportunity to thank our Jan Mar Jun Sopt Pee
shareholders for their continuing support and for their interest in the Shiircs s MFGB

s

Apirag Vanich

development of the Univanich business.

Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of Univanich Palm Oil PCL was established by resolution of the Board of Directors on
29 July 2003. The current committee, reappointed on 11th May 2006, comprises the following Independent

Directors :
Mr Suchad Chiaranussati : Chairman of Audit Committee
Mr Tanate Phutrakul : Member of Audit Committee
Ms Supapang Chanlongbutra : Member of Audit Committee

Details of the scope of duties of the Audit Committee, as defined by the Board of Directors, may be found
within the Company's Annual Report.

In 2007, the Committee requested the company's internal audit department to review the monitoring of weight
losses on oil deliveries and fruit transfers. The internal audit report concluded that overall the controls to monitor
weight losses are well designed and operating adequately.

The Audit Committee accepted the report and recommendations of the Internal Auditor which were also accepted by
the company's senior management.

The Audit Committee also considered the priorities of the internal audit programme and resolved that a
system be established to check the monitoring and reporting of Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) for the
company's new biogas projects, to be fully operational in 2008.

During 2007, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The Committee also reviewed the Quarterly Financial
Statements prepared by the external auditor, and recommended these to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Annual Financial Statements for 2007 together with the company's
management and with the external auditor. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Annual Financial
Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company
Limited as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, including the results of the company's operations and its cash flows for
those years, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the management of the company has performed its duties in
accordance with all laws and regulations to which the company must comply. The Committee is also of the opinion
that all related party transactions have been conducted within the guidelines established to avoid any conflict of
interest, and that the published code of good corporate governance has been applied.

The Audit Committee has proposed that the Board of Directors consider the reappointment of Mrs. Suwannee
Bhuripanyo, of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited, to be the company's statutory auditor for 2008. This
nomination will be proposed to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for confirmation.

0 <

Suchad Chiaranussati
Chairman of Audit Committee
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=NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
2007 OPERATING OUTCOME

Production of fresh fruit bunches (FFB) from our own oil palm estates was 20.5% lower than in the previous
year. This lower crop had been expected, due to the delayed effect of the 2005 dry season which affected flowering
patterns and bunch production approximately 24 months after that severe drought. In Thailand overall, FFB
production decreased by only 6.4% since the reduced yield per hectare was partly compensated by new plantings
coming into production.

The volume of FFB purchased from the company's outside growers was 3.1% lower than in 2006. New
production from young palms around the purchasing area compensated for the generally lower crop yields.

Total FFB processed by Univanich factories was 6.2% lower than in 2006. Crude Palm Oil production
decreased by 10.8% due to lower oil extraction rates which were another feature of production throughout 2007.

Combined production of 133,636 tonnes Crude Palm Oil (CPO) and Palm Kernel Oil (PKO) was 9.6% lower
than the previous year, due to the seasonal factors mentioned above.

Ifthere are no unusual weather factors, we anticipate a full recovery of crop production in 2008.

Total sales volume of 172,034 tonnes palm oil was 3.8% higher than in 2006, with 21.4% of this volume being
third party oil purchased by Univanich to make up the volumes required for export shipments.

The average selling price of CPO increased by 52.7%, and the average PKO price increased 40.8% over the
previous year. These high average prices more than compensated for the low crop production and for the lower oil
extraction rates which depressed crushing margins in our purchased fruit business. High palm oil prices resulted
from (a) rapid consumption growth in major developing economies such as China and India (b) high petroleum
prices driving new demand for oleochemicals and biofuels, and (c) slower growth of competing soya oil following a
reduction of soyabean area in USA where farmers have been encouraged to convert to cultivation of corn for ethanol
fuel production.

We anticipate that these supply and demand factors will persist into 2008.

The sales volume of Univanich oil palm seeds and seedlings started to recover in 2007 as the domestic market
gradually overcame the massive oversupply of seeds imported for unsuccessful Government biofuel initiatives in
2005 - 2006. During this period when the domestic market for seeds has been depressed by excessive supply, there
has been very good demand growth from overseas customers who are recognising the superior performance of
Univanich planting material in dry-climate regions similar to Thailand.

Overall, the company's net proceeds of sales increased by 57.1% to Baht 4.497 billion, mainly due to the
significantly higher palm oil prices and the increased volume of oil and seed sales.

Cost of Sales

The cost of sales increased by 66.1% over the previous year largely due to higher purchased fruit prices and
the higher volumes of palm oil purchases. The average price of purchased FFB was 63.2% higher than in 2006,
reflecting the higher palm oil prices.

The overall gross margin on sales declined from 19.7% in 2006 to 15.1% in 2007, mainly due to higher FFB
purchase prices, lower crushing margins and the low margins on third party oil purchased to make-up the volume
required for export shipments.
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Trading Result

After-tax net profit for the year ending 31st December 2007 was Baht 505.16 million (Baht 5.37 per share),
an increase of 33.5% over the previous year. The higher palm oil prices have more than compensated for the
seasonal depression in crop production.

Capital Projects

Expenditure on Capital Projects in 2007 increased by 87% to total Baht 164.7 million.

Major plantation projects included the routine replanting of another 278.5 ha (1,740 rai) of oil palms. Since
the commencement of programme in 1992, 59% of the company's plantations have been replanted with a new
generation of palms and this routine annual replacement has achieved a stable, well-balanced age profile.

Major projects in the factories included the construction of two biogas power plants at the company's Siam
and Lamthap factories, each with generating capacity of approximately 1 megawat. Construction was delayed by
very wet weather in the second half of 2007 but both projects will be commissioned in February - March 2008, with
income to be generated from the sale of electricity to the Provincial Electricity Authority (PEA), and from the sale of
Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) under the United Nations scheme to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
Investment in these two projects will be approximately Baht 87.0 million.

Capital expenditure on land acquisition totalled Baht 37.6 million with the purchase or lease of 148.8 ha (929.9
rai) to add to our area of oil palm plantations in Krabi Province.

Cash Flow and Capital Structure

Cash or cash equivalents on hand at 31 December 2007 totalled Baht 226.88 million, compared to Baht
311.22 million at end of 2006.

o Net cash inflow of Baht 430.52 million from 2007 operating activities resulted from the net profit of Baht
505.16 million, depreciation, amortization and other non cash charges of Baht 115.83 million and an in-
crease in working capital of Baht 190.47 million.

e Net cash payments of Baht 138.86 million for investment purposes, include net capital expenditure of Baht
157.90 million, and withdrawal of cash investments of Baht 20.0 million. Capital expenditure included the
ongoing oil palm replanting programme, the construction of biogas power projects, and the routine replace-
ment of factory machinery and vehicles.

e Net cash outflow of Baht 376 million for financing activities resulted from dividend payments of Baht 376
million, being Baht 4.00 per share paid during 2007.

The company's capital structure at 31 December 2007 was strong with no long term debt and a debt to equity
ratio of 0.12 times.

Univanich m Annual Report 2007




a17lusaui 2550

¥

AnuguSveslnsImswasnueaunasy 2 Insams
Completion of Two Environmental Energy Projects

ﬂmﬁuﬁy hnannTsanuaenhauiag Tssaud e
unm"lmumimm“lmwuumn“limmﬁ“luuaﬂmmuﬂﬂ
Wormaosaasvedssunioluhfiaas mﬂauw
mﬂmﬂﬂswmumsmiwamaﬂsmu umﬂﬁumsﬂaﬂ
ﬁamiﬂﬂhmﬂiuiaﬂmmﬂwmwmu mawaﬁﬂw
mmwu"lmumiaammuiﬂﬂ USHN Nan T«vmm mﬂﬂ 9
Whuusynszdvaina 1/1°lwm1Jinmms’;mmmmmu
Sransaulaomnizoonsuf s umaTulagmskaan e
I

Waste water from the company's Siam and Lamthap
factories is now treated in covered in-ground anaerobic
reactors (CIGARS) to digest the high organic content
in the waste. This innovative digester technology to
capture Methane biogas was designed for Univanich by
Waste Solutions Ltd, an international firm of consulting
engineers specialising in biogas technology.

Szam bmgas engine
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Siam CIGAR (UoH¥n CIGAR # l59auaeiuihaw)
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Methane biogas is normally a very damaging greenhouse
gas but at the Siam and Lamthap factories it no longer
escapes to the atmosphere but is used as a fuel. Two
large biogas engines were imported from the Guascor
company in Spain, each capable of generating up to
950kw electricity for supply to the provincial grid.
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Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emissions to create a new energy source
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The covered anaerobic digesters can hold up to 40,000
cubic metres of palm oil mill effluent (POME). The
methane emissions are captured by heavy duty plastic
sheeting and piped to the biogas power plant.

After treatment in the digesters, water is returned to the
existing pond system to be used for irrigation of the
company's plantations and nurseries.
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Siam Biogas Opening (Wiilalsawanma¥inimi lsaaruaeviay)

On 16th February 2008, Univanich Chairman Mr Apirag Vanich officially opened the completed biogas projects. In

addition to the renewable energy source, the Siam and Lamthap projects are expected to produce revenue from
Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) as a Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) incentive under the United

Nations protocol on climate change.
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Expanding Seed Exports
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Germinated oil palm seeds are carefully packaged in
cartons of 4,000 seeds each, for dispatch to domestic

and export customers. During the past 30 years
Univanich has collected and tested pedigree breeding material from research centres around the world. The company
now has the most advanced oil palm breeding programme in Thailand, exporting to growers in seven countries.
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Univanich germinated seeds are dispatched by airfreight
from Phuket International Airport. The superior
performance of this planting material, particularly in low
rainfall conditions, has led to increasing export demand.
New generations of hybrid crosses are being
continuously tested in progeny trials, with an objective

of achieving an annual seed production of 10 million
seeds by 2010.
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Expanding Oil Palm Research Centre
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At the Univanich Oil Palm Research Centre (OPRC)
the tissue culture laboratory is expanding operations with
more than 60,000 cultures under management. In the
picture above the company's Tissue Culturist Jeerawan
Saengsawang displays cultures which have already
become embryogenic, forming shoots of the next
generation of oil palm clones.
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Minister of Agriculture and Cooperatives, Dr Teera
Sutabutr, together with a group of senior officials
recently visited the Univanich seed production unit.
Pictured above, the minister and his group visit the bunch
analysis laboratory where fruit from new progenies in
the company's breeding programme is carefully analysed
for bunch composition, including high oil content.

Minister in Bunch Analysis Lab
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Univanich Field Day
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The Deputy Governor of Krabi Province, Mr Tanwakom
Kemasiri, officially opened the first Univanich national
field day on 15th December 2007. In his opening speech
Khun Tanwakom commented that this initiative to share
the company's research with Thailand's oil palm
farmers would encourage the efficient growth of the
country's expanding oil palm industry.
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More than 1,000 oil palm growers from around
southern Thailand attended the Univanich field day.
Managers at five estate sites and at the OPRC presented
information and answered farmer questions about
planting techniques, irrigation requirements, nursery
management, and about the importance of advanced oil
palm breeding to achieve higher crop yields.
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Installation of New Irrigation Systems
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Each year Univanich installs new irrigation systems to
test the latest generation of hybrid seedlings in both
irrigated and non-irrigated field trials. This programme
is designed to identify yield responses of different
progenies under both high and low rainfall conditions.
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New Employee Houses
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During 2007, an additional 10 new houses were built
for plantations workers and their families. Since the
company's employees are now provided with this high
standard of estate housing, there has been low labour
turn-over and the company has been fortunate to retain
a skilled and stable workforce.

Univanich m Annual Report 2007




a W U ¢ ¢ a a d‘ '
msmummnawuq1J1aNgmmﬂumsﬂiz‘guﬂmaﬂizMﬂ
Univanich research papers presented to overseas conferences
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Univanich Managing Director, Mr John Clendon, was invited to present a paper titled "4 Review of 15 years of oil
palm irrigation research in Southern Thailand" to the Indian National Conference on Oil Palm held in Andhra
Pradesh. Since the Government of India is encouraging the expansion of oil palm cultivation there was much interest

in the Univanich research carried-out in low rainfall conditions similar to those in India's oil palm regions.
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At the same conference in India, research consultant,
Dr V Rao, presented a paper titled "The Univanich Oil
Palm Breeding Programme and Progeny Trial Results
from Thailand". Pictured above at the conference trade
booth are Ms Pritsana Kusakoon (Supervisor, Seed
Exports), Dr V Rao, and Dr Palat Tittinutchanon
(Plantations Controller and Head of Oil Palm Research).
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International seeds marketing
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The recent Price Outlook Conference in Malaysia was
attended by more than 1,800 international palm oil
producers and consumers. Univanich was represented

at a trade booth to promote awareness of the company's
high yielding oil palm seeds, and to meet customers from
around the world.
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A bright light on the horizon
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At Univanich, surplus methane biogas emitted naturally from the
organic waste of palm oil factories, is now destroyed in a flare and
no longer escapes to the atmosphere as a damaging greenhouse
gas.

Univanich Annual Report 2007




UaagANLE I

aMNYNIMA
E v

v f f v f s ¥
AnwulsUsauvesanmauioIma U ANULEEIee UL i likanda Tasmasve s amiuanaing 20%
~ 2 A v ' v ' v P v ¢ ¥
wansznuzinavuludnmaanzuaaas lunatesauesassilaeu lasauiavaz Inashavussas
v v v v
nanzuaaluil 2548 aanwamlvinanananaseenauinlui 2550

Thailand's Monthly CPO Production 2006 - 2007

wananiiuauaululszmelne 1 2549 - 2550
140

120

wl [ TN A
A I~ 7\
—

A
60 /
40 £

20

0 T T T T T T T T T T T
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct HNov Dec

~2006 —2007

WANSANEI D UTLUUAZINATNITNANUNIINTAT

A

msflﬁma@ﬂmmﬁmimmimmu (AFTA) :Jnmauaimmaﬂmmmsnﬂnumm m'luhmsmmuwmm
mmuumuwwmamwﬂuimwamﬂu Tagaz mammmﬁamﬂimaw 5% melud 2546 ﬂmuumamﬂmmnan
m'lnuwamﬂuismawmimmmmuﬂmmﬂuﬁ mﬁ“lmmmummmﬁnﬂﬂuauq Alulyswwanmd Tuil 2550 U5
umuﬂmnmumu“luﬂiwmﬁ"l‘wﬂ“lmLﬁummuumuaweJuamﬁn"lﬂmaaﬂumuﬂmmmﬂuﬁﬂmum 80% Vo450
mimamwm msiaAaIagIoenuad N 14flwmymﬂiwﬂaﬂmau"lmuwaﬂﬁwTﬂﬁvu Tﬂammm%mmsmmmu
"lﬂnuwwamm‘lwtu“luﬂswmﬁmmwmmwauiﬂum

mmﬂumiummsmsmm mmuwmmmemmmmﬂﬂuauq "lﬂmmmammumiﬂmmuﬂmmamm
m%ﬁwaﬂiwuiﬂﬂmmamymﬂﬁ@ﬂquuumuiuﬂnmﬂ

gilasauazgimusiniuhandvlulszmalne

gUmu 9 Jaran

anonBnIAT 155,587 Msvs lnaludseme 834,149
Wanan 1,051,090 ﬁqaaﬂ‘lﬁﬁumadw?qw%d 59,569
asoontnhaudy 224,043

anonauil 88,916

3 1,206,677 5 1,206,677

Y v

paraatinhauaululszmalne 1,051,090 dului 2550 MpanMzeIMALaIAIANIZATUINNUA Taglinanan
v Y '
Tuuesn 1,450,000 du Tudl 2551

Univanich m Annual Report 2007




RISK FACTORS

Weather patterns, such as occur during a severe drought, can affect average oil palm yields by as much as
20%. This impact of climatic events will be experienced in the year of the drought and up to two years after the
stress, when the palms produce fewer fruit bunches.

The severe 2005 dry season resulted in much lower crop production in 2007.

Thailand's annual CPO Production (tonnes) waranisnhandululszmelng (A1)
2004 820,800 2547 820,800
2005 784,000 2548 784,000
2006 1,167,100 2549 1,167,100
2007 1,051,000 2550 1,051,000

If there are no unusual weather factors, a full recovery is expected in 2008 when Thailand is expected to
produce approximately 1,450,000 tonnes CPO.

AFTA and Trade Barriers

Under the Asean Free Trade Agreement (AFTA) it was proposed to remove non-tariff barriers to vegetable
oil trade within Asean, with any Tariffs to be reduced to maximum 5% by 2003. This measure has not yet been fully
implemented and palm oil imports into Thailand are still limited by some non-tariff barriers. In 2007 there was a
significant surplus of palm oil produced in Thailand and Univanich exported 80% of the company's palm oil sales. In
developing these new export markets, for the benefit of Thailand's oil palm farmers, Univanich successfully com-
peted with the major Asean producers in Malaysia and Indonesia.

If tariff or non-tariff barriers were imposed to restrict this free trade in palm oil it may have a negative impact
on Thailand's oil palm farmers.

Thailand's Supply & Demand of CPO in 2007

Supply Demand

Opening Stock 155,587 Local Consumption 834,149
Production 1,051,090 Export refined olein 59,569
Export CPO 224,043

Ending Stock 88,916

Total 1,206,677 Total 1,206,677

In the coming year, Thailand's production of CPO is expected to recover from the seasonal low of 1,051,090
tonnes in 2007, to reach at least 1,450,000 tonnes in 2008.
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Palm Oil vs Other Oil Seed Crops
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Competition from Soybean Oil, Rape Seed Oil and Sunflower G

The main competitor for palm oil in world markets and in Thailand's domestic market is soybean oil. Compe-
tition from soybean oil may increase as a result of increased plantings in South America, encouraged by growing
demand for soya meal as an animal feed and by the higher yields from genetically modified soya crops (GMOs)

It is forecast that the production of soybean oil may decline during the coming five years as American farmers
switch to cultivation of corn for the production of ethanol fuel (Source USDA)

At the present time palm oil is the most price competitive of the main oils competing for a share of the world
market, and palm oil is easily the most efficient and environmentally sustainable of the main oil crops.

World Demand Growth

World demand growth for edible oils and fats will depend on world economic growth, world population
growth and price trends which will fluctuate according to supply and demand.

Currently there is very strong demand growth. The world's annual consumption of the 17 main edible oils
and fats has grown from 80.5 million tonnes in 1990/91 to 157.2 million tonnes in 2007. (Source : Oil World, 2007)

Since year 2000, world consumption of vegetable oils grew at a compound annual growth rate of 5.2%.
During this period consumption of palm oil increased at an average annual rate of 8.1% to become the world's
leading source of vegetable oil.

Growth in world productlon of main Oils & Fats
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| 2006/07 : 152.7 mil tonnes | 1990/91 : 80.5 mil tonnes

Palm Qil
(24 9(%)) Soya Oil

(24.0%)

PalmOil
(14.0%)

Rape Oil . PKO Others/
(12.1% Sunflower Oil Others/ &Coconut Animal Fats
7.3%) PKO i
(7.3%) Animal Fats (5.7%) (39.5%)

&Coconut (26.9%)
(4.8%9
Source : Oil World 2007

One factor driving this consumption increase is the strong economic growth in large developing countries
such as India and China. If the economies of India and China experience slower growth this may also reduce the rate
of growth in the world's demand for vegetable oils.
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Biofuels Demand Growth

Vegetable oils are increasingly consumed as biofuels for electricity generation and for the manufacture of
biodiesel. World capacity for biodiesel manufacture is now estimated to be approximately 36 million tonnes per
annum. Much of'this world capacity is currently under- utilised, due to high world prices of vegetable oil feedstocks.

Biodiesel is seen to reduce the effect of fossil fuel on World climate change. For this reason, some countries
have legislated to mandate the use of biodiesel in diesel blends. This means that future consumption growth of
biodiesel may not depend on price alone.

If the manufacture of biodiesel forces vegetable oil prices to unacceptable high levels some governments may
withdraw their biodiesel mandates and biodiesel subsidies. This may cause a reduction in the use of biodiesel and a
fall in vegetable oil prices.

Economics of biodiesel from palm oil
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By December 2007, CPO prices had risen above RM 3,000 per tonne making biodiesel manufacture clearly
unprofitable without large subsidy, even with petroleum around US$ 100 per barrel. Despite this fact, there has been
no reduction in the mandated targets which call for continuing increases in biodiesel production in Europe, North and
South America, Australia and Asia, including in Thailand.

Exchange rates

International trade in palm oil is conducted in US dollars. Importers and Exporters from Thailand can
therefore be affected by the value of the Thai Baht which has continued to strengthen relative to the US dollar.

In the short term Univanich hedges any currency risk on individual sales contracts which are denominated in
US dollars.
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Competition from new crushing mills

In Thailand there is strong competition for purchased fruit amongst at least 40 major crushing mills. Univanich
has about 11% share of this market. New crushing mills and expanded existing mills can affect the level of compe-
tition for purchased fruit.

Although new crushing capacity is entering the industry every year, Univanich has achieved a good long term
growth rate. This has been made possible by the company's continuing investment in new processing capacity and
by the expansion Thailand's oil palm planted area which is reported to have increased from 2.0 million rai in 2003 to
3.1 million rai in 2006. (source: Department of Agriculture). At this rate of planting growth, Thailand will require a
similar rate of expansion of crushing capacity.

Fruit Processed by Univanich
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'~ SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors and Management

The Company's Board of Directors No of Shares No of Shares Change
31 December 2006 31 December 2007
1. Mr. Apirag Vanich 17,591,042 17,591,042 0
2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch 1,475,214 1,475,214 0
3. Mrs. Anchalee Tephabutra 1,515,214 1,515,214 0
4. Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai 0 0 0
5. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich 1,475,214 1,581,214 +106,000
6. Dr. Prote Sosothikul 200,000 200,000 0
7. Mr. John Clendon 800,000 800,000 0
8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati 0 0 0
9. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul 0 0 0
10. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra 0 0 0
Senior Management No of Shares No of Shares Change
31 December 2006 31 December 2007
1. Mr. John Clendon 800,000 800,000 0
2. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon 7,500 26,000 +18,500
3. Mr. Narong Suvannarerg 5,500 5,500 0
4. Mr. Somphon Tantitham 45,500 45,500 0
5. Mr. Anucha Supakorn 4,500 4,500 0
6. Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom 3,000 3,000 0
7. Mr. Phiphit Khlaisombat 0 0 0

The first 10 major shareholders as at 31 December 2007

Shareholders No of Shares

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich 17,591,042 18.71
2. Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd. for Depositors (Local) 17,445,079 18.56
3. Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd. for Depositors (Foreign) 15,380,600 16.36
4. Mrs. Chantip Vanich 9,024,430 9.60
5. Chean Vanich Co., Ltd. 5,596,662 5.95
6. Mrs. Boonrod Vanich 4,171,706 4.44
7. Duke Technology Limited 1,830,000 1.95
8. Ms. Rojana Vanich 1,614,198 1.72
9. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich 1,581,214 1.68
10. Mrs. Anchalee Tepabutra 1,515,214 1.61

Dividend Policy

The Company has a policy to pay cash dividend of not less than 50% of its net profit after taxation. However, whether the

Company will pay a dividend and the amount thereof will depend, amongst other things, on the Company's financial conditions

and future plans.
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MBNINY NUY Mr Apirag Vanich
seHIUNITINMST Chairman

91943 1 Age 43
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Education : Master's degree in Business Administration from Indiana University and a degree in Agricultural Economics
from Purdue University in the United States

Experience : Director of the Vanich group of companies in 1990 and Executive Chairman of the group since 1992. The
Vanich group of companies is concentrated mainly in Thailand and in addition to the Univanich palm oil business the group
has interests in mining, transport, property development and hospital services. Mr Vanich is also a director of Siam Paetra
Co., Ltd., a business involved in international shipping and container services.

HIIWDUT 3 UY Mrs Phortchana Manoch
NTINANIT Director

91g 53 1 Age 53
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Education : Master's degree in Hospital Administration from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, in the United States
Experience : Currently Chief Executive of Aikchol Hospital Public Co., Ltd., a modern private hospital in Chonburi
Province. Mrs Manoch has been a director of the Univanich business for more than fifteen years and is also a director of
other companies in Vanich group.

WMy Ingas I Mrs Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai

NTINANIT Director
19 50 1J Age 50
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Education : A degree in finance from the University of Wisconsin in the United States
Experience : Mrs Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai has been a non-executive Director in the Univanich Palm Oil business since
1983 and is also a director of other companies in the Vanich group, including Aikchol Hospital Public Company Limited.
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HI9A1I09AD NP Ms Aungkhana Vanich
AIINNS Director
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Education : Master's degree in Business Administration from University of New Haven in Connecticut, U.S.A.
Experience : Ms Aungkhana Vanich was non-executive Director in the Univanich business from 1989 to 1995 before
re-joining the company in 2000. She is currently also Executive Director of property developer Vanich Lineal Co., Ltd. and
a non-executive Director of Chean Vanich Co., Ltd., Chean Vanich Transport Co., Ltd., and Phuket Rubber Co., Ltd.

A3. WA ¥olandna Dr Prote Sosothikul
NIINMT Director
91g 40 1 Age 40
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Education : Doctorate in Business Administration from the American University of Hawaii and Master of Science degree
from Boston University, USA.

Experience : Currently Vice President of Business Development for Seacon Development PLC, the developer and

operator of the largest retail shopping complex in Thailand. Dr Prote Sosothikul was appointed as a non-executive director
on the Univanich Board in 2000.
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HIYIH Y (AaHADU Mr John Clendon
NIIUNII/NTTUNIIHIANTS Managing Director
919 59 1) Age 59
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Education : Diplomas in Agriculture and in Valuation and Farm Management, from Lincoln University in New Zealand.
Experience : From 1980 to 1998 John Clendon was employed by Unilever Plantations and Plant Science Group of the
UK, holding various management positions in the Asia-Pacific region, including that of Managing Director of the Univanich
joint venture in Thailand from 1991 to 1996.

Prior to re-joining Univanich in October 1998, Mr Clendon was Director of Unilever's oil palm operations in East Asia,
Chairman and Managing Director of Unipamol Malaysia Sdn Bhd. and director of Unifield PLC in the UK.
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L.

Education : Master's degree in Management Science from Imperial College, University of London and an honours degree
in economics and political science from the London School of Economics.

Experience : Between 1991 and 1998, Mr Chiaranussati was a vice-president of Investment Banking at JP Morgan's
Proprietary Investment and Investment Banking Unit. In late 1998 he was appointed as an advisor to the Bank of Thailand
on matters relating to corporate sector debt restructuring, and the Financial Institutions Development Fund. Mr Chiaranussati
was the Managing Principal of Westbrook Partners till early 2005. Today, Mr Chiaranussati is the Managing Principal of
RECAP Partners and is responsible for RECAP Partners' real estate investment operations for Asia.

Mr Chiaranussati was appointed to the Univanich Board as an Independent Director on 12 February, 2000.

WgsIUA 9N3zNa Mr Tanate Phutrakul
ASSNAISASIDTOU/NTINNISIATS Audit Committee/Independent Director
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Education : Master's degree in Engineering from Imperial College, University of London and a Master of Business
Administration from Harvard University.

Experience : Currently Chief Financial Officer of TMB Bank PCL, Mr Phutrakul is responsible for Finance and Risk
Management. Prior to his appointment as CFO, Khun Tanate was the head of Corporate and Investment Banking Group
for TMB Bank from 2004-2005. Since 1991, Khun Tanate has held a number of positions in the Financial services industry
acting as the Country manager for ING Barings securities (Thailand) and ING bank as well as Managing Director of
Commercial Banking at DBS Thai Danu Bank plc during that period. Mr Phutrakul was appointed to the Univanich Board
as an Independent Director on 27 July 2003.
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HNANFNNNA “niiimuﬂs Ms Supapang Chanlongbutra
ASSNAISATIDTOU/NTTNNISOTTS Audit Committee/Independent Director
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Education : Master's degree in Public Administration from the National Institute of Development Administration and a
degree in Accounting from Thammasart University

Experience : Ms Chanlongbutra joined Univanich as a Management Trainee in 1985 and was the Company's Financial
Controller from 1994 to 1997 before being promoted to the position of Commercial Manager in charge of the Company's
financial and accounting activities. During her 15 years with the Company she participated in Unilever's commercial and
management training activities in several countries, and in 1990 was seconded as an overseas auditor in Unilever's Internal
Audit Department.

In 2000 Ms Chanlongbutra resigned her management position with Univanich to take up management responsibility for
her family's business interests in plantations, rubber manufacturing and exporting.

Ms Chanlongbutra was appointed to the Univanich Board as an Independent Director on 27 July 2003.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Mr John Clendon Managing Director, (please refer Board of Directors for personal profile)
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Education : Ph.D. (Soil and Plant Science) University of Florida, U.S.A., a Master's degree from North Carolina State
University and a Bachelor degree from Kasetsart University in Thailand

Experience : Before joining Univanich in 1988, Palat Tittinutchanon was senior Oil Palm Agronomist in Thailand's
Department of Agriculture.

In 1988 he was appointed Research Officer responsible for the Univanich R&D programme. From 1994 he was seconded
overseas by Unilever for two years as Estate Manager in Pamol Plantations Sdn Bhd in Malaysia. Upon his return to
Thailand in 1996, he was appointed as Plantations Manager, responsible for operations in Univanich oil palm estates. In
January 2007, Dr Palat Tittinutchanon was appointed Plantations Controller and Head of Oil Palm Research.
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Education : MS (Soil Science) University of the Philippines and a Bachelor degree in Science from Kasetsart University

Experience : Narong Suvannarerg worked as an Assistant Researcher in the Department of Agriculture in 1968 and as
Technical Officer in Rubber Replanting Aid Fund in 1969. He joined Univanich Group in 1981 as an Estate Manager and
was promoted to a Personnel & Public Relations Manager in 1990. In 1993 he was appointed to be manager responsible for
the Company's Purchased Fruit Operations.
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Education : BS in Mechanical Engineering, King Mongkut's Institute of Technology North Bangkok Campus, Bangkok

Experience : Somphon Tantitham joined Univanich in 1982 as a factory engineer and was promoted to Factory Manager
in 1997. In 2003 he was appointed Project Manager to oversee the construction of the new crushing mill at Lamthap. Upon
successful completion of that project he was appointed Factories Manager, responsible for the operations of the company's
three palm oil crushing mills. Upon retirement of Suchart Terdkiatkhachorn at end 2007, Somphon Tantitham was pro-
moted to the position of Group Engineer, responsible for the company's major capital projects and for the health, safety and
environment programme.
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Education : B.A. (Accounting) Chulalongkorn University

Experience : For 16 years prior to joining Univanich, Anucha Supakorn worked in the Finance and Accounting
Department of various companies of the Shell Companies in Thailand including upstream oil, tin smelting and petroleum

refining. He joined Univanich in November 2000 as Commercial Manager and is currently responsible for the company's
domestic and export marketing operations.
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Education : Master of Business Administration, Prince of Songkla University.
BA (Accounting) The University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

Experience : Nattapong Dachanabhirom worked as an Audit Supervisor with Coopers & Lybrand (TH) Company Limited
for 5 years from 1992. In 1997 he joined Univanich as Financial Controller and was promoted to Accounting Manager in
2000, responsible for the company's accounting and finance operations.

u1ﬂWWﬁ ﬂmﬂmmﬂ Mr Phiphit Khlaisombat

mmmﬂﬂgm Factories Manager
91g 37 1 Age 37

L4 v
MsAnE: YSYeIas IAINTIUANTAT 7191 IAINTTNGATTINNT UNINeaema Tu Tadnszaounal 5ulj3

2

ﬂﬁ”ﬁ“ﬂﬂ1iﬂ! ﬂi‘)lW]i]“"i’JiJﬂ‘Nﬂ‘UUiH‘Vlﬂu’ﬂuslf ﬂm‘WW‘ﬁ ﬂﬁWﬂfﬁJ‘UCﬂ VINTHL']‘j’LlNi]ﬂﬂ’]iIﬂiﬂﬂ"l‘ﬂu?hﬂ?ﬁ’miiil UHN Llli‘)iﬁ
EJﬂLﬂf?Jﬁ %Wﬂﬂ (ll“l’iﬁﬂl) ﬂﬂﬂﬁ]?ﬂﬂﬂmﬁi\lﬂm (511.!@]‘ﬁﬁillhlﬂi‘ﬂﬂﬁL!@Nﬁ\nﬂuﬁ]ﬁﬂﬂiﬂi ’1]1&?]5?) ﬂmWW‘ﬁ ﬂﬁ?ﬂﬁll‘ﬂ@'l i]\?hlﬂi‘ﬂ
miLmqml,ﬂuwmiimmmuﬂmauﬂm AUATTTY Iﬂﬂﬂllai“ﬂNﬂ"]ﬁ’]'ﬂiﬁx‘lQWUﬁﬂﬂunmlhﬂ?J‘Uﬂﬂ‘Ui’H‘ﬂﬂﬂ 3 LL‘I’N ‘Vlf’ﬂlﬂﬁ]f]"l’mﬂ
Uaenszeazaiu

Education : BE in Industrial/Production Engineering, King MongKut's University of Technology Thonburi

Experience : Before joining Univanich, Phiphit Khlaisombat worked as a Project Manager in Berli Jucker Public Company
Limited. He joined Univanich in 2005 as the Factory Engineer responsible for management of the company's Siam crushing
mill in Aoluk. Upon the promotion of Somphon Tantitham in December 2007, Phiphit Khlaisombat was promoted to the
position of Factories Manager responsible for the operations of the company's three palm oil crushing mills in Aoluk,
Plaipraya and Lamthap Districts.
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

Asat 31 December 2007, the Company had ten Directors, including three Independent Directors. Who make-
up the Audit Committee.

The Company's Board of Directors at 31 December 20

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director

3. Mrs. Anchalee Tephabutra Director

4. Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai Director

5. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich Director

6. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

7. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director

8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Independent Director

9. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Independent Director
10. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director

Mrs Anchalee Tephabutra subsequently resigned as director, with effect on 22 February 2008.
Mr. Anucha Supakorn is responsible for investor relation activities.

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

L.

The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the public company to be in compliance with
the Public Companies Act and in accordance with the Company's Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the Company to be in line with the objectives
and resolutions of the shareholders' meetings.

In a transaction in which a director has a personal interest or may have some other conflict of
interest with the Company, that director will not have the right to vote on the matter.

Authorized directors must comprise two directors co-signing together with the Company's seal in
order to bind the Company to its obligations.

The Board of directors can assign power of attorney to any one or more persons or juristic persons
to act jointly or severally on behalf of the Company according to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company, including appointment or removal of Company employees. The Board
of Directors has the right to change or withdraw such power of attorney already assigned to such
persons. The assignment of the power of attorney must not be in such a way that it will cause the
Managing Director or management, or potentially conflicting persons, to have a conflict of interest with
the Company. Such approval is granted in a case of normal business and when the Board of Directors
has already defined the scope of approval clearly.
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The following activities can be done with the majority approval from the Board of Directors in which

one director possesses one vote:

6.1 Budget approval and the annual business plan

6.2 Borrowing or lending the amount of more than Baht 70 million including borrowing at one time or
several times from the same lender

6.3 Provision of guarantee of an amount over Baht 70 million, whether at one time or several times for
the same borrower

The director must inform the Company immediately if:

7.1 He or she has an interest in a contract whether directly or indirectly involving the Company,
or

7.2 He or she increases or decreases his/her holding in both shares or debentures of the Company
or group companies

The Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring the Company in compliance with the rules and

regulations of both the SET and SEC regarding connected transactions as well as acquisition and dis

posal of assets of listed companies.

Independent Directors

As at 31 December 2007 the company has three Independent Directors whose personal profiles are included
with the Board of Directors in this Annual Report.

All three Independent Directors fulfill the following criteria ;

They are not shareholders of the company or of any related, affiliated or associated company, either
directly or indirectly.

They are not involved in the management of the company or of any related, or associated company,
and do not receive a regular salary from any such company.

They have no direct or indirect beneficial interest in the finance or management of the company or of
any related, or associated company.

They are not related in any way to a member of management or to the majority shareholders of the
company or of a related or associated company.

They have not been appointed as a representative to safeguard interests of the company's directors,
majority shareholders or shareholders who are related to the company's majority shareholders.

They are skilled and highly capable of performing the duties of Independent Directors, including giving
opinions and reporting on the financial performance of the company, and to carry out other duties
delegated to them by the Board of Directors, free of the control of management, major share holders
or the close relatives of such connected persons.

Audit Committee

As of 31 December 2007, the Company's Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors, as

follows:

Name Position
1. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Audit Committee member
3. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee member
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Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
1.
2.
3.

Review to ensure that the Company has a complete, correct and adequate financial statement.
Review to ensure that the Company has suitable and effective internal control and internal audit.
Review to ensure that the Company complies with the SEC Act, SET regulations and laws
governing the business of the Company.

Consider selecting and nominating the Company's auditor, including recommendation of the auditor's
compensation.

Consider the Company's disclosure on connected transactions or transactions that give rise to a
conflict of interest to ensure accuracy and completeness.

Prepare a report on good corporate governance and publish it in the Company's annual report and to
be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Execute other responsibilities as assigned by the Board of Directors and agreed by the Audit
Committee

Strategic Planning Subcommittee

The Strategic Planning Subcommittee was established by the Board in 2004, comprising seven Directors, as

follows:

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director

3. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

4. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director
5. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Independent Director
6. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Independent Director
7. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director

The Strategic Planning Subcommittee meets as required and at least once each year, to review the Company
strategy for long-term growth, the Company's Long Term Plan, and other long-term strategic issues including the
succession of senior management.

Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee

The Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee, whose members comprise Non-Executive Directors was
established by the Board on 11 August 2005. The Subcommittee comprises four Directors, as follows:

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

3. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Independent Director
4. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director
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The Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee meets as required and at least once each year, to review and
recommend to the Board the framework of senior management appointment and remuneration, and to ensure that
there is a succession plan. As the Executive Directors are not members of the Subcommittee, they do not play any
part in the decisions of their own remuneration.

As of 31 December 2007, the Company's Management Committee of senior managers comprises seven

members as follows:
Name Position
1. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director
2. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon Plantations Controller
3. Mr. Narong Suvannarerg Purchased Fruit Controller
4. Mr. Somphon Tantitham Group Engineer
5. Mr. Anucha Supakorn Commercial Manager
6. Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom Accounting Manager
7. Mr. Phiphit Khlaisombat Factories Manager

Mr.Suchart Terdkiatkhachorn, Formerly Group Engineer and Management Committee Member retired from
the company in December 2007 after more than 24 years service to the Univanich business. He was succeeded as
Group Engineer by Mr.Somphon Tantitham.

Ms.Khanang Buranavisetkul , Formerly Management Accountant, resigned from the company in October
2007 and was succeeded by Ms. Chanatnuth Wongwan as Management Accountant with responsibility for Internal
Audit.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Managing Director

The Managing Director has the authority to manage the Company's normal business activities and including
procurement of raw materials, machinery and sale of the company's products, engagement of employees, and develop-
ment of the Univanich business, within the scope of authority and responsibility granted by the Board of Directors.

The Managing Director's authority does not include approval of any transaction that may involve the Manag-
ing Director as other connected persons which may cause any conflict of interest within the Company. In compliance
with SET regulations, connected transactions or transactions involving the acquisition or disposal of Company assets
for which require shareholders' approval, unless such transactions are in the normal course of business and for which
the Board of Directors has already clearly defined the scope of approval.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Management

1. Collectively decide on the Company's operational issues including establishing duties, objectives,
guidelines, policies, corporate governance, production, community and customer relations as being
responsible to the Board of Directors.

2. Authority to approve general expenses, project expenses or investments according to the scope of
authorities and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

3. Authority to hire, appoint, dismiss, define the salary, offer reward, raise the salary and compensate
bonus for employees in the various departments of the company, according to the authorities as signed
by the Board of Directors
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Authority to act for and on behalf of the Company in any business that is relevant and beneficial to
the Company.

Act on the Company's behalf for general management affairs.

The Management's authority does not include approval of any transactions that may involve Manage
ment interest that may cause any conflict of interest within the Company, including connected transac
tions or transactions involving the acquisition or disposal of Company assets, unless such transactions
are in the normal course of business and for which the Board of Directors has already clearly defined
the scope of approval clearly.

Appointment of Directors and Manage

Appointment of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises at least five directors appointed by the shareholders.

The Board of Directors shall elect the directors to be Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Managing Director
and any other positions as deem appropriate.

At each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the total number of directors must resign. If the
number of directors cannot be divided evenly into threes, the number of directors to resign must be
close to one-third.

Since the Company's Articles of Association do not specify the method for electing the Board of
Directors, therefore, the election of the Board of Director will be done according to the Public
Companies Act which sets out an election method known as a "cumulative voting" that has the following
principles:

One shareholder has a total number of votes equal to the number of shares held multiplied by the
number of directors to be elected.

Each shareholder can cast the total number of votes according to clause (1) above to elect one or more
candidate to become directors. In case of voting for many candidates, the shareholder can divide votes
in proportion among the candidates.

Candidates will be ranked in descending number of votes, and those with highest number of votes will
be elected to become directors according to the number of vacant positions. In the event of a tie, the
decision will be made by drawing lots.

Appointment of the Managing Director

The Board's Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee has responsibility to review and recommend se-

nior management appointment and succession planning.

Remuneration

Remuneration in terms of money

Remuneration for ten directors

Remuneration Type 2007 (Baht million)

Fees and compensation 5.36

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No 38 on 20th April 2007, shareholders voted to maintain
Director's remuneration without change. The current fee for individual directors is Baht 270,564.80 per annum, with
the Chairman's fee set at Baht 405,847.20 per annum. In addition the Chairman receives expenses totaling Baht
2,196,150 per annum.
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Only the Audit Committee receives meeting expenses amounting to Baht 20,000 per meeting in the case of
Audit Committee members, and Baht 25,000 per meeting in the case of Audit Committee Chairman.

Remuneration for Auditors

Audit Fees 995,000

Remuneration for eight senior managers

Salary, awards and compensation 30.61

Other compensation

The Company has established a retirement fund for its employees. Retiring employees will receive retirement

benefits according to the labour law and other benefits according to the Company's retirement regulations.

Corporate Governance

Before becoming a listed company in 2003, Univanich followed the Unilever Code of Corporate Governance.
Since listing, the company has adopted the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) guidelines on Good Corporate
Governance.

Disclosure of the company's Code of Corporate Governance is included in the Annual SET Filings (Form 56-
1), Annual Report (Form 56-2) and in the listing documents.

The 15 principles of Corporate Governance adopted by Univanich are as follows;

1. Policy on corporate governance

Treat all shareholders and other stakeholders equally.

The Board of Directors must manage the Company with diligence and care and be fully responsible
for their duties.

Support the management and employees to work with ethical conduct.

Set up an efficient organization structure with the delegation of decision-making authority to different
levels to allow the correct planning, quick delegation and efficient supervision of the work.

Arrange for risk assessment from both internal and external sources through regular meetings between
management and internal auditors to consider various risk factors that could affect the Company's
operation and projections.

2. Right and equality of shareholders

In 2006, the Company organized an Annual General Meeting of shareholders at a venue in central Bangkok
for shareholders convenience. Notice of the meeting was posted on the company's website one month before the
meeting and the company sent invitation letters to the shareholders at least seven days prior to the meeting date, in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, and also prepared the minutes of the meeting within 14 days
after the meeting date. The minutes are filed and can be reviewed by shareholders on the company's website.
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3. Right of other stakeholders

The Company places great importance on the rights of various groups of stakeholders as follows:

e  Employees: The Company treats all its employees equally.

e  Trading partners: The Company establishes fair policy and operational procedures with its trading
partners.

e  Creditors: The Company conforms with the terms and conditions of any loan.

®  Clients: The Company sells quality products to its clients at fair prices.

e Competitors: The Company does not conduct business in a way that damages its competitors.

e  Society: The Company conducts business that does not negatively affect society and environment.

4. Shareholders' Meeting

The Company emphasises the importance of selecting a convenient central location for shareholders' meet-
ings and posting notice of the meeting on the company's website one month before the meeting and the company
sent in circulating the notice and agenda to all shareholders not less than seven days before the meeting. Every
director and Independent Director will normally attend such meetings and the Chairman will allocate appropriate time
and opportunity for shareholders to ask questions and express their view.

5. Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors participates in establishing and approving the Company's policies including the busi-
ness plan, and budgets. The Board constantly monitors the Company's progress according such business plan and
budgets. This also involves assigning responsibility to Management to implement such policies efficiently in order to
increase the enterprise's value and to generate expected returns to the shareholders, as well as to disclose accurate
information to shareholders in a transparent and timely manner.
Although the Board of Directors has delegated management authority to the Managing Director, the Board of
Directors still retains the highest approval authority according to the Company's Articles of Association.

6. Conlflicts of Interest

The Company has implemented measures to prevent potential conflicts of interest. The Company will strictly
comply with the SEC Act and SET rules and regulations. In any transactions in which directors, management or
shareholders are persons whose personal interest may conflict with the Company's interest, such persons will not be
eligible to vote approval of such transactions. Any such transactions will be conducted according to the Company's
normal practice under which the market price will be regarded as a key benchmark and to be comparable to prices in
transactions conducted with unrelated third parties.

The Company publicly discloses its connected party transactions in order to safeguard investors' interests.
Details can be found in the notes to the audited financial statements. These connected transactions also have to have
Audit Committee approval regarding the necessity and reasonableness of the transactions.

In order to prevent exploitation of inside information, the Company strictly prohibits its directors, manage-
ment and employees from using any undisclosed inside information that can affect the share price. The Company
shall seek litigation against any person who is found to use such inside information for personal benefit.
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7. Code of Best Practice
The Company's directors comply with the code of best practice as set out by SET guidelines.

8. Directors' Roles
Currently, nine directors of the Company are not members of the management team. Three of these nine
directors are Independent Directors who make up the Audit Committee.

9. Separation of Responsibilities

Currently, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Apirag Vanich, does not hold a management position
in the Company. Although Mr. Apirag Vanich is a representative of the Vanich Group, the major shareholder, he is
not the Managing Director. Therefore, there is added assurance that the company 's management, and policies are
independent.

10. Director and Management Remuneration

Compensations and incentives provided to directors and management are comparable to other companies in
the same industry and therefore, are justifiable.

The Company agrees to disclose information concerning director and management remuneration according to
the requirement from the SEC.

11. The Board of Directors' Meeting

The Company organises Board of Directors' meeting at least once every three months. Invitations are sent
out to all directors not less than seven days prior to the meeting, according to the Company's Articles of Association.
During 2007, the Company organized four Board of Directors' meetings with directors' participation as follows:

Name Position 2007 Meeting Attended
1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman
2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director 3
3. Mrs. Anchalee Tephabutra Director 2
4. Mrs. Kanchana Chitrudi-amphai Director 4
5. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich Director 3
6. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director 4
7. Mr. John Clendon Director 4
8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of Audit Committee 3
9. Mr. Tanate Phutrakul Audit Committee 2

10. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee 4
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12. Subcommittees of the Board
In 2007 there were three Board Subcommittees

Audit Committee:

The Board created the Audit Committee on 29 July 2003. Members of the Audit Committee have tenure of
three years. During 2007, the Audit Committee has conducted four meetings to consider the implementation of the
Company's Internal Audit system.

Strategic Planning Subcommittee:

On 13 November 2004 the Board created the Strategic Planning Subcommittee to consider the Companys'
long-term growth options, the Company's Long Term Plan, and other long-term strategic issues including the
succession of senior management.

Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee:

On 11 August 2005 the Board created the Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee to review and rec-
ommend to the Board the framework of senior management appointment and remuneration, and to ensure that there
is a succession plan.

13. Internal Control System and Internal Audit

The Company set up an internal audit system on 29 July 2003 to be supervised by the Audit Committee. This
team may include an internal audit firm employed by the company from time to time to help set up and monitor the
internal control system.

14. Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee for the purpose of seeking opinions regarding the
necessity and reasonableness of connected transactions, which were certified and documented in the notes of the
financial statement. In the case where the Audit Committee cannot or does not have the capability to assess
transactions in a reasonable manner, the Company will be responsible for finding an independent specialist to provide
opinions on the transaction on the Audit Committee's behalf in order to provide the Board of Directors and share-
holders with the best information for their consideration.

15. Investor Relations

In compliance with SEC requirements, the Company has provided sufficient information in the filing report
and prospectus. The Company will continue to disclose relevant information to the public in a timely and correct
manner with respect to the SEC and SET regulations. The Company has appointed the Managing Director and the
Commercial Manager as the persons responsible for investor relations affairs.

Internal Control

Under the management of Unilever PLC, during the years 1983 - 1998, the company established systems of
internal controls which were periodically reviewed by Unilever's Internal Audit Department. In 2003 the company
established its own Internal Audit function, reporting to the Audit Committee which comprises three Independent
Directors. During 2004 - 2005, in order to further develop the Company's internal audit skills the Audit Committee
appointed BDO Richfield Ltd, of Bangkok, to carry out risk assessments and audits of key business activities.
Details of current internal audit activities are recorded in the Report of the Audit Committee Chairman.
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RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Phuket Rubber Related to Mr. Apirag Vanich e Purchase palm fruit = Market price
Co., Ltd. (under Section 258) who is

Univanich's major shareholder

and Phuket Rubber's major

shareholder and authorized di-

rector.
Chean Vanich Related to Mr. Apirag Vanich ~® Port char‘ge ‘for Market price 6.03
Transport Co., Ltd. (under Section 258) who is export shipping

Univanich's major shareholders
and Chean Vanich Transport's
major shareholder and autho-
rized director.

The Necessity and appropriateness of related transactions

The Company has carefully considered the necessity and the appropriateness in order to obtain highest benefit for
the Company and its shareholders. The Company has received and paid for the compensation at a fair market price as
shown in the above table.

Measures or procedures to approve related transactions

1. Connected persons were excluded from the approval process whenever the Company entered into connected
transactions. Former connected transactions were proven to be normal business of the Company and the
pricing policy of those transactions were based on prices comparable to other transactions conducted with
other unrelated parties as described by the Company's Auditor in the notes to financial statements as well as in
the opinion of the Company's Audit Committee.

2. The process for approval of connected transactions must comply with rules and regulations of SET. The
Company clearly defines rules and process for approval of the connected transactions. Conflicted parties have
no voting rights in approving such connected transactions.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Univanich Palm QOil Public Company Limited

I'have audited the accompanying balance sheets as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, and the related statements
of income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended of Univanich Palm Oil Public
Company Limited. The Company's management is responsible for the correctness and completeness of information
in these financial statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
I plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then
ended of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

1 B |

Suwannee Bhuripanyo
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3371
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited

Bangkok
22 February 2008
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Univanich Palm QOil Public Company Limited

Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Trade accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Loans to contractors

Palm plantation, net

Property, plant and equipment, net
Advance payment for purchases of land

Total non-current assets

Total assets

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

2007 2006

Notes Baht Baht
4 226,886,570 311,216,248
5 - 20,000,000
6 231,044,207 64,069,874
7 138,232,193 119,075,513
1,203,054 4,523,590

597,366,024 518,885,225

2,911,579 3,253,303

8 162,860,517 160,003,938
9 811,301,878 763,481,404
19 5,953,600 -
983,027,574 926,738,645
1,580,393,598 1,445,623,870
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Notes Baht Baht
Liabilities and shareholders equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable 43,029,008 26,284,978
Accrued income tax 8,483,944 15,039,161
Accrued expenses 10 45,975,587 34,336,125
Current portion of provision for employee benefite 11 1,862,540 10,550,252
Other current liabilities 15,082,042 14,300,687
Total current liabilities 114,433,121 100,511,203
Non-current liabilities
Provision for employee benefits 11 51,137,460 59,449,748
Total non-current liabilities 51,137,460 59,449,748
Total liabilities 165,570,581 159,960,951
Shareholders equity
Share capital 12
Registered share capital
Ordinary shares 470,000,000 470,000,000
Issued and paid-up share capital
Ordinary shares 470,000,000 470,000,000
Premium on share capital 12 267,503,419 267,503,419
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve 13 47,000,000 47,000,000
General reserve 20,000,000 20,000,000
Unappropriated 610,319,598 481,159,500
Total shareholders' equity 1,414,823,017 1,285,662,919
Total shareholders' equity
shareholders' equity 1,580,393,598 1,445,623,870

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

Univanich Annual Report 2007




giNHyiuhay 100 (mrw)

suilsnanu

awsudaugadun 31 SunaN w.a. 2550 uaz W.a. 2549

Y
51914910 ve
AUNUIY
o S v
M lsvudu
1 Y a
e lumsvenazusvis
flsonmsvie
yA
519'ld0u

MADVUNUNTTUNT

o oA \ % dv J N a k4
i’ﬂ"li%1ﬂﬁ1§ﬂ'lluu\i'l‘l-!ﬂﬂ‘llﬂﬂﬂﬁ)ﬂ!Uﬂ%]ﬂ!!ﬂzﬂ'l‘HNu"lﬂ

&
ADNLVYY

mlsanmsauiivavunsumatula

aa 9
Rl
Mlsgndmsuil

v 4
v A

o AR 4
m"lmmjumuwusm

9

i lsgnidmsivil

v r £
wmammlsznamummmﬂumuwﬁwawummuﬁ

HULTA

N.71. 2549

U

23 2,863,378,583

(2,299,590,699)

563,787,884
(164,099,437)

399,688,447
6,732,180

14 (5,317,080)

15 401,103,547

(33,103)

401,070,444
(22,788,856)

378,281,588
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4.02
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Univanich Palm QOil Public Company Limited

Statements of Income

For the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

Sales
Cost of sdes

Gross profit
Selling and administrative expenses

Profit from sales

Other income

Directors remuneration

Operating profit beforeinterest expense
and income tax

Interest expense

Operating profit beforeincome tax
Income tax

Net profit for the year

Basic earnings per share

Net profit for the year

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

2007 2006
Notes Baht Baht
23 4,497,448,961 2,863,378,583
(3,819,570,787)  (2,299,590,699)
677,878,174 563,787,884
(153,005,188) (164,099,437)
524,872,986 399,688,447
8,927,581 6,732,180
14 (5,357,080) (5,317,080)
15 528,443,487 401,103,547
- (33,103)
528,443,487 401,070,444
(23,283,389) (22,788,856)
505,160,098 378,281,588

17
5.37 4.02
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Univanich Palm QOil Public Company Limited

Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
For the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

Opening balance

Dividend paid during
the year

Net profit for the year

Closing balance

Opening balance

Dividend paid during
the year

Net profit for the year

Closing balance

| ssued
and paid-up Premium on Retained earnings
sharecapital share capital Appropriated Unappropriated Total
Note Baht Baht Baht
470,000,000 267,503,419 481,159,500 1,285,662,919
16 - (376,000,000)  (376,000,000)
- 505,160,098 505,160,098
470,000,000 267,503,419 610,319,598  1,414,823,017
I ssued
and paid-up Premium on Retained earnings
sharecapital share capital Appropriated Unappropriated Total
Note Baht Baht Baht
470,000,000 267,503,419 286,177,912  1,090,681,331
16 - (183,300,000)  (183,300,000)
- 378,281,588 378,281,588
470,000,000 267,503,419 481,159,500 1,285,662,919

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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505,160,098 378,281,588

8,9 110,747,225 106,863,924
6 1,986,571 (200,000)
7 700,000 -
(3,739,843) (2,293,534)

9 907,165 -
11 5,231,321 16,568,905
620,992,537 499,220,883

6 (168,960,904) 7,461,002
(19,856,680) (58,562,615)

3,320,536 (3,202,470)

11,397,009 12,262,528

(6,555,217) 10,917,809

11,639,462 5,710,262

781,355 (4,820,482)

11 (22,231,321) (2,268,905)
430,526,777 466,718,012




Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Notes Baht Baht
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 505,160,098 378,281,588
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation 8,9 110,747,225 106,863,924
Increase (decrease) in alowance
for doubtful accounts 6 1,986,571 (200,000)
Increase in allowance for diminution in
value of spare parts 7 700,000 -
Gain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment (3,739,843) (2,293,534)
Write-off property, plant and equipments 9 907,165 -
Increase in provision for employee benefits 11 5,231,321 16,568,905
Net operating cash flows
before changes in working capital 620,992,537 499,220,883
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable 6 (168,960,904) 7,461,002
(Increase) decrease in inventories (19,856,680)  (58,562,615)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets 3,320,536 (3,202,470)
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable 11,397,009 12,262,528
Increase (decrease) in accrued income tax (6,555,217) 10,917,809
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 11,639,462 5,710,262
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 781,355 (4,820,482)

Cash payment for employee retirement benefits 11 (22,231,321) (2,268,905)

Net cash inflows from operating activities 430,526,777 466,718,012

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows (Cont'd)
For the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Notes Baht Baht
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash receipts from settlement of loansto contractors 1,241,724 1,842,110
Cash payments of loans to contractors (900,000) (1,350,000)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 4,652,609 6,402,286
Cash payments for purchases of property, plant
and equipment 9 (141,272,256)  (76,531,614)
Advance payment for purchases of land 19 (5,953,600)
Cash payments for costs of palm plantation 8 (16,624,932)  (11,610,371)
Cash receipts (payments) for short-term
investments 5 20,000,000 (20,000,000)
Net cash payments in investing activities (138,856,455)  (101,247,589)
Cash flows from financial activities
Dividends paid 16  (376,000,000) (183,300,000)
Net cash payments in financing activities (376,000,000) (183,300,000)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (84,329,678) 182,170,423
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 311,216,248 129,045,825
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 226,886,570 311,216,248
Supplementary information for cash flows:
Interest paid for the year - 33,103
Income tax paid for the year 29,766,106 11,871,047

Non-cash transaction

The principal non-cash transaction for the year ended 31 December 2007 is the purchase of
machinery and equipment amounting to Baht 5.35 million (2006 : Baht 3.14 million).

The notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm QOil Public Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

1 General information

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited (the "Company") was formed on 26 December 1995 from the
amalgamation, according to the Civil and Commercial Code, of Hup Huat Palm Oil Industry Company Limited, Siam
Palm Oil and Refinery Industry Company Limited and Thai Oil Palm Industry and Estate Company Limited. The
Company is a public company limited, incorporated and domiciled in Thailand.

The Company's head office is located at 68/2 Patipat Road, Tambol Talad Yai, Ampur Muang Phuket, Phuket province.

The Company has 3 branches located at the following addresses:

1) Aoluk Branch : 258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road, Ampur Aoluk, Krabi province.

2)  Plai Pharaya Branch : 231 PlaiPhraya-Pasaeng Road, Ampur Plaipaya, Krabi province.
3)  Lamthap Branch : 142 Moo 1 Tambol Toongsaitong, Ampur Lamthap, Krabi province.

The Company has been listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand since 25 November 2003.

The Company operates principally in Thailand and is engaged in oil palm plantations, palm fruit processing and seed
businesses. As at 31 December 2007, the Company employed 1,080 people (2006 : 1,034 people).

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 February 2008.

2 Amalgamation of compani

According to the Civil and Commercial Code, Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited has assumed all of the
assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of the companies amalgamated on the date of amalgamation. However, as at
31 December 2007, the names on some legal documents, entitlements and agreements of the three amalgamated
companies relating to assets assumed before the companies amalgamated have not yet been amended to the name of
Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited.

3 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

3.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Accounting Standards issued under the

Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
amounts of revenues and expenses in the reported periods. Although these estimates are based on management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial statements that
are in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages,

the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.

Univanich Annual Report 2007
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3 Accounting policies (Cont'd

3.2

3.3

34

Announcements and amendments to accounting standards effective in 2007 and 2008

On 2 May 2007, 21 September 2007 and 7 December 2007, the Federation of Accounting Professions
announced:

: amendments to Thai Accounting Standards effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 as follows:

TAS no. 44 (Revised 2007) "Consolidated and separate financial Statements"
TAS no. 45 (Revised 2007) "Investments in associates"
TAS no. 46 (Revised 2007) "Interests in joint ventures"

: the adoption of new Thai Accounting Standard and amendments to Thai Accounting Standards effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 as follows:

TAS no. 25 (Revised 2007) "Cash flow statements"

TAS no. 29 (Revised 2007) "Leases"

TAS no. 31 (Revised 2007) "Inventories"

TAS no. 33 (Revised 2007) "Borrowing costs"

TAS no. 35 (Revised 2007) "Presentation of Financial Statements"

TAS no. 39 (Revised 2007) "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors"
TAS no. 41 (Revised 2007) "Interim Financial Reporting"

TAS no. 43 (Revised 2007) "Business combination"

TAS no. 49 (Revised 2007) "Construction contracts"

TAS no. 51 "Intangible Assets"

However, the Company's management assessed and determined that the adoption of new standard and the
revised standards have no significant effect on the Company's financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the invoiced value for the sale of goods net of discounts. Revenue from sales of goods
is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Other revenues are generally recognised on the accrual basis.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount and subsequest measure at the remaining
amount less allowance for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the amount
expected to be collectible. Bad debts are written off during the year in which they are identified and recognised
in the income statement within selling and administrative costs.

Univanich m Annual Report 2007




3 Wlgnamstin® (ﬂ’e))

3.5)

3.6)

3.7)

Fuainmae
v

aummmaauammmmmumauamawﬁm "l,mmgmgmﬁm“lﬂmﬂm i1ﬂmummﬁummmmmmﬂm«na:lmafj
maumuﬂ wmuiumwaﬂawﬂa‘umﬂﬁﬂwaua m“lﬁvmﬂmamwmmmmmmwa%ﬁumuu U LA muwu
mamumammﬂﬂs ﬂaumﬂm’maﬂummmnmq ﬂﬂ%mﬂmmmu memiawaiumswammﬂumummnmm
msauivnunlng mmﬁwﬁm 2lasunls mmmﬂﬁmmmmm mw“lmmﬂﬂwumﬁiﬂwnmam%mamnﬂu
maiwauﬂmuammﬂua alyelumsuie viinez mmmamsaﬂuaﬂ1ﬁuﬂ1ﬂwaamauauﬂmmamj
indow T mmﬁammmw

awuthau

v

muﬂmmmmmmmmu @uwuaauiwmﬂﬁ nfmma msamuﬂmmm miﬂwﬁmwwuwmiﬂiwumu
uawmsmm miﬂaﬂﬂmu msﬂsmwwma ms“lfanfJ wﬂuﬂuwumﬂmmmﬂumsﬂaﬂﬂmnmumﬂﬂwwawaﬁ
U siauthaulnnanan (“]NGl“]fﬁ“’EJw!.’JﬂﬂﬂfJﬂﬁ W 2 -3 ﬁ) ﬂmﬂumu'ﬂumuﬂmu mwmmuwumuﬂmu
Lﬂumu‘ﬂumswaﬁwaﬂmwmmﬂmuﬂmu“lﬁwawaﬁ Taolaiaiauasanoluszozna 20 1 viedasmnoa sz oy
nafimaovesdumuiifeives uamasnoudladinn

Nau emsuazqUnias nazau@ensia

nau ﬂ?ﬂiillaw@ﬂﬂimLlﬁﬂ\ﬂmiJiWﬂTVI‘L!‘Hﬂﬂnﬁﬂllﬁﬂiﬁm’CTll ﬂnﬁmﬁ?ﬂ?ﬂ?u?miﬂﬂﬁl%?ﬁlﬁuﬁiﬂ LW@ﬁﬂﬁﬂWWWN

L=y

umwmaumwmmawwﬂmaaﬂmeJﬂ151wﬂ'iwTﬂﬂm1/1ﬂsummms"lwmaumwamm"lﬂu TNCSTT - AT
ﬂswmmmimamﬂwﬂi ol s

amlsuilyanau 201

91M3taz 159971 201
1 L4

inFoanstazginya 5-101

PIUNIH UL 5-101
A YAy A Yo o

IA309ANIAY ARALAZIATE lyd TN 5-101)

o A

dd’ Y = ! ! d‘ L SIW A U =) 9 Y ' 5 ' d’ ! yQ) =
Tunsainsmamindgannyamiamane: lasuau simautiyFizgnisvaalmmiuyamiamanag lasuauiui
¥

AMITHOUUTUUAL msqsnyw 'im“l,umm"lsmmwusm’;mqﬂumwmmwmsuu ﬁuwummmiﬂmﬂsﬂwﬂmu
‘wmﬂm%wuuwﬂim‘la“luﬁmmwmwmﬁumwfJ mﬂnmmLﬂu"lﬂ"lﬂﬂaummmwmsﬂﬁuﬂﬂum s
Tadse Ta%unamummﬂﬂmmﬂﬂfﬂs Tﬂﬂmiﬂﬂ"luumiﬂsuﬂﬁaumww“lﬂm msﬂi‘uﬂiwaﬂfu”mmmamwm
maaﬂmﬂmﬂwﬂi Iwummaaammﬁumwwmmmm A DULBULAY ﬂWUWiQiﬂ‘Hﬁ‘Uﬁ!ﬂuﬂﬂGﬁ%W
lusouse ﬂwnammwmmu

° ° ' ° ~ ~ A Ay Yo o o A g
swmimlsuaznanuainmsiruienuia laonlssuieunndsmeuunui lasususimamia® vazeziu’
Tuaum'lsvnanu

Univanich m Annual Report 2007



3 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

3.5

3.6

3.7

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost being determined on weighted average
basis. The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the inventory, such as transportation charge. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating activities. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Allowance for diminution in value is made, where necessary,
for obsolete, slow-moving, and defective inventories.

Palm plantation

Palm plantations are stated at cost. All costs comprising mainly palm falling and clearing, land terracing and
drainage, palm planting, weeding and fertilizing involved during the immature period until the palms are ready
for commercial harvesting at approximately 2-3 years, are capitalised. The Company amortises palm
plantation cost after the commercial harvesting, using a straight-line basis, over a period of 20 years or over
the remaining period of the concessions to which it relates, whichever is shorter.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on
the straight line basis to write off the cost of each asset, except for land which is considered to have an
indefinite life, to its residual value over the estimated useful life as follows:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and plants 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixture and office equipment 5-10 years

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will
flow to the Company. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included
in income statement.
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3 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Provision for employee benefits

The Company has employee benefit schemes to provide benefit to the employees who resign or retire from
the Company after working for the Company for the period or at age as specified in the employee benefit
schemes. The Company has set up the provision as at the balance sheet only for the employees who are
entitled to such benefits at the balance sheet date. Changes in the liabilities arising from salary adjustments,
changes in number of employees, and the rate of benefit are charged to income statement when it incurred.

Provident fund

The Company operates a provident fund, being a defined contribution plan, the assets for which are held ina
separate trustee-administered fund. The provident fund is funded by payments from employees and by the
Company.

The Company's contributions to the provident fund are charged to the income statement in the year to which
they relate.

Other provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions, except where a transaction is hedged by a forward contract, in which case the contract rate is

used. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated
into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at that date, with the exception of receivables covered by forward
contracts which are accounted for in Baht at the contracts rates. Gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, are recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Leases - when the company is a leasee

Leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
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3 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

3.14 Dividends

Dividends payable are not accounted for until they have been approved at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders or by the Board of Directors meeting in case of interim dividend declaration.

3.15 Deferred income tax

The Company does not recognise income tax payable or receivable in future periods in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from allowance for doubtful accounts,
allowance for diminution in value of inventories and other provisions.

4 Cash and cash equivale

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Cash on hand 467,664 1,260,660
Deposits held at call with banks 126,064,111 139,733,448
Fixed deposits with banks 100,354,795 170,222,140
Cash and cash equivalents 226,886,570 311,216,248

Fixed deposits with banks represent three-month terms (31 December 2006 : two months and three months), and
carry interest at the rates between 2.25% and 3% per annum (31 December 2006 : 3.75% and 4.75% per annum).

5 Short term investments

Short term investments as at 31 December 2006 represented fixed deposits with banks with maturity of ten months
and eleven months, and carried interest at the rate of 5.125% per annum. These fixed deposits were matured during
the second and the third quarter of 2007.

6 Trade accounts receivak

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Trade accountsreceivable 243,544,207 85,569,874
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (12,500,000) (21,500,000)
Trade accountsreceivable, net 231,044,207 64,069,874
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6 Trade accounts receivable, net (Cont'd)

Outstanding trade accounts receivable as at 31 December can be analysed by their age as follows:

2006

Baht

Up to 3 months 64,774,958
3 - 6 months -
6 - 12 months -
Over 12 months 20,794,916
Totad 85,569,874
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (21,500,000)
64,069,874

In December 2007, the Company had written off 2 bad-debt accounts for which full
allowance had been made, totalling amount of Baht 10,986,571.

7 Inventories, net

2006
Baht
Palm fruit 64,800
Palm oil 77,968,062
By products from palm oil production 5,185,617
Palm seeds and seedlings 10,833,099
Spare parts and general supplies 27,823,935
121,875,513

Less Allowance for diminution in value
of spare parts (2,800,000)
Inventories, net 119,075,513
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8 Palm plantation, net

The Company's plantation has been on both the Company's own land, concession land and lease land. The land
concessions were issued by the Government for development of oil palm plantation. Details of land under concession

At 31 December 2006
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2007
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfer in (out)

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2007
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Palm  Immature
plantation palms Total
Baht Baht Baht
273,862,065 16,315,169 290,177,234
(130,173,296) - (130,173,296)
143,688,769 16,315,169 160,003,938
143,688,769 16,315,169 160,003,938
1,388,042 15,236,390 16,624,932
13,759,027 (13,759,027) -
(13,768,353) - (13,768,353)
145,067,485 17,793,032 162,860,517
289,009,134 17,793,032 306,802,166
(143,941,649) - (143,941,649)
145,067,485 17,793,032 162,860,517

and under operating lease agreements as at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Area per Planted
Name of estate Type Terms Contract (Rai) area (Rai)
Chean Vanich Concession Granted for 30 years from
22 April 1983. 20,000 14,241
TOPI Concession Renewed for 30 years from
19 November 1993. 8,250 8,250
TOPI Lease Leased from Co-operative
Promotion Department for 30
years, at therates of Bht 100 to
Bht 300 per Ra per vyear,
commencing on 27 April 1994.
2,500 2,500
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9 Property, plant and equipment

(TP9°811°SLE 1R :9007) SE1°0E8 LOY 1ed uI 9q [[us 18y judwdmbs pue juerd ‘A1rodod pajeroardap AJny jo junowe SurALIed sso1s oY) £(07 Jqu0d € 18 SV

8/8'TOS'TI8  866'€02'Z8 0ZT'96T'LE T26'999°T62 8h'1726'Tee £88'989'Gly 805'€29'2ET
(,q0'6t2'v28) - (80t'€60'vL) (toe‘czL'e6y)  (9/8'9/2'1ST)  (C18'¥ST'66) -
GE6'0S5'GE9'T 8660228 825'68Z'TTT 788'06E'T6. ¥2E'T02'€LE SE9TY8'YPT  80S'€C9'ZET
8/8'TOS'TI8  866'€02'Z8 0ZT'96T'LE T26'999°T62 8h'1726'T2e £88'989'Gly 80S'€29'2ET
(c/8'8/6'96) - (eo.'298'0T) (eer'L0T'€9) (#80'T0%'LT) (#59'209'S) =
= (ceo'eze'se) €16'6GTC 09G'€/8'9T 709'69%'TT SyS'02L'y =
= = (TrT'y) (766'26T) GET'202 = =
(99.'216) = (6T2'6T) (Tos'062) (or0'c0T) = =
(91°2086) (s9t1°206) 5 = - S =
LIZ'6T9'9YT  9Zh'€S0'96 €EE'8T6'TT 0S0'0S.'T 029'62 = 818'/98'9¢
YOV'T8Y'€9.  6SE'T8C'22 9€6'800'V€ 8EC'6ET'LEE 612'12L 122 266'89G'9 099'65/'G6
YOV'T8Y'€9.  6SE'T8C'C2 9€6'800'VE 8EC'6ET'LEE 612'12L 122 266'89G'9 099'G5/'G6
(9zL'ove'eyL) - (266'992'v7L) (teo'syi'ovy)  (G88'T80'VET)  (8ST'2SS‘€h) -
OST'8Z8'S0S'T  6SE'T8C 22 826'G/Z'80T 626'785'LLL ¥0T'608'T9E OST'TZTOPT  099'GS.'S6
yeq yeq yeq yeq yeq yeq yegd
el uolre|esul SODIYeA Jojow  Juswdinbs pue  sjue|d pue JusweAo Idwil  pueT]

pue pue juswdinbs  ABuIyoe |\ sbuip|ing pue-

uoIPNJISUCD 93140

Jopunsiessy  puesaunixiy

‘@4n3iuJnH

Junowe %004 BN

uoie991dap pare|INWNXY SS9
10D
L00Z BqueRedTE IV

JunoLLe X00q Bu Buso[)

ab.leyo uoireide g

(o) ui jsures L

uofealjisseoay

BU -s[esodsiq

BU - }Jo LBNLM

suonippy

unouwre Yooq u buuado
/00¢ equieded TE

popua Jeak ay3 JoH

1unoure 400q BN

uoIeIoaidep pareNWNXY SS9
10D
900¢ PquedleqTE 1V

Annual Report 2007

1

9

Univanich



10 mlyaeasay
mlyneaaneilsznevaie W 2549
1IN
MUUAIAIY 6,546,888
M ngsumundene 5478951
mlFnanenuminauiene 17,676,788
) 4,633,498
34,336,125
11 dseawadselevuniinay
W.f1. 2549
11N
drseamailse Temiminaunaemmuadiszaeluniiel 10,550,252
dseanailse Temiminaunaeimuasiszinunimisel 59,449,748
39U 70,000,000
d‘ o ¢ o N o ‘:3’
anunaey Iivesdseanalse Teyuminauiiaadl
N.f. 2549
11N
goadudl 55,700,000
v v 9
dryoawatlsz Tegiminaunmuay 16,568,905
drvoanatlszTewiminaunae 1 lusgning (2,268,905)
goalaed) 70,000,000
a o c:‘ o “ @ o [ Y d'd a A yw ¢ d' A d' =
ViEnasasewnalse Tevuminaudmsuminauiians lasunalsz Tesuwiooonninau nselonboneiy
Il 9 v ' Ed
AWz TeUveIus I Fardadiseanmeminanuniansa.

niAIna a Juduseulnd uazmuInIng TR

o

4 g = o g o
ﬂwuuﬂmnuam1Naﬂsszuﬁ%z'lmummmﬁausummu‘n amﬂumimu'szgﬂﬂmmumqmsmmu

Univanich E Annual Report 2007




10 Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses consist of:

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Accrued transportation expenses 11,894,117 6,546,888
Accrued contractors cost 5,754,701 5,478,951
Accrued employee expenses 22,410,378 17,676,788
Others 5,916,391 4,633,498
45,975,587 34,336,125
11 Provision for employee benefits

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Current portion due within one year 1,862,540 10,550,252
Long-term portion due more than one year 51,137,460 59,449,748
Total 53,000,000 70,000,000

The movement on provision for employee benefits is as follows:
2007 2006
Baht Baht
Beginning balance 70,000,000 55,700,000
Additional provision for employee benefits 5,231,321 16,568,905
Payment during the year (22,231,321) (2,268,905)
Ending balance 53,000,000 70,000,000

The Company has accounted for provision for employee benefits for employees who are entitled to the
scheme of separation pay or retirement benefit of the Company. The provision is accrued only for the
people who are entitled at the balance sheet date and is calculated by based on current salary with the rate
as determined by the Company's policy. The rate will be adjusted depending on the number of years of
services.
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12 Share capital and premium on share capi

Premium

Ordinary on share
Number of shares capital Total
shares Baht Baht Baht
At 31 December 2005 94,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419
I ssue of shares - - - -
At 31 December 2006 94,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419
I ssue of shares = = = -
At 31 December 2007 94,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419

The total authorised and registered number of ordinary shares is 94,000,000 shares (2006 : 94,000,000 shares)
with a par value of Baht 5 per share (2006 : Baht 5 per share). The total issued share is 94,000,000 shares (2006 :
94,000,000 shares) with a par value of Baht 5 per share (2006 : Baht 5 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

13 Legal reserve

At beginning of the year
Appropriation during the year

At end of the year

Under the Public Companies Act, the Company is required to set aside as statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its
net profit after accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve is not less than 10 percent of the

registered capital.

14 Directors' remuneratic

Directors' remuneration represents meeting fees and remuneration paid to the Company's Chairman, Directors and
Audit Committee members as approved by the shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Shareholders'

Meeting.

2007 2006
Baht Baht
47,000,000 47,000,000
47,000,000 47,000,000
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15 Operating profit

The following expenses classified by nature, have been charged in arriving at operating profit.

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Staff costs 167,597,520 169,790,045
Depreciation and amortisation 110,747,225 106,863,924

16 Dividends

At the Board of Directors' Meeting held on 14 November 2007, the Board of Directors approved an interim
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of Baht 1.00 per share, totaling Baht 94,000,000. The interim
dividend was paid in December 2007.

At the Board of Directors' Meeting held on 10 August 2007, the Board of Directors approved an interim dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2007 of Baht 1.50 per share, totaling Baht 141,000,000. The dividend was paid in
September 2007.

At the Annual General Shareholders' Meeting held on 20 April 2007, the shareholders approved a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2006 of Baht 2.75 per share, totaling Baht 258,500,000. The Company paid an interim
dividend amounting to Baht 117,500,000 in 2006 and paid the remaining dividend of Baht 141,000,000 in May
2007.

At the Board of Directors' meeting held on 11 August 2006, the directors approved an interim dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2006 of Baht 1.25 per share, totaling Baht 117,500,000. The interim dividend was paid in
September 2006.

At Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2006, the shareholders approved a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2005 of Baht 2 per share, totaling Baht 188,000,000. The company had paid an interim dividend amounting to Baht
122,200,000 in 2005 and paid the remaining dividend of Baht 65,800,000 in May 2006.

17 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year as follows:

2007 2006

Net profit for the year (Baht) 505,160,098 378,281,588
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year (shares) 94,000,000 94,000,000

Basic earnings per share (Baht) 5.37 4.02

There are no outstanding potential dilutive ordinary shares, warrants, in issue for the years ended 31 December
2007 and 2006.
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18 Provident fund

The Company established a contributory registered provident fund, in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E.
2530. The registered provident fund was approved by the Ministry of Finance.

Under the plan, employees must contribute 5 percent of their basic salary, with 5 percent of the employees' basic
salary based on employees' service years to be matched by the Company. The Company appointed an authorised
fund manager to manage the fund in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed in the Ministerial
Regulation No. 2 (B.E. 2532) issued under the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530.

In 2007 the Company contributed to the provident funds which were charged to expense amounting to Baht 999,271
(2006 : Baht 1,345,893).

19 Commitments

On 10 April 2007, the Company entered into purchase and sale agreement with 5 sellers to purchase land in the
approximate area of 275 Rai at the total price of Baht 16,734,600. The Company made advance payment amounting
to Baht 1,692,000 in April 2007 and Baht 4,000,000 in November 2007 which has been presented as advance
payment for purchases of land in the financial statements. The remaining balance of Baht 11,042,600 will be paid on
the date of registration the right of land title deed to the Company within 30 April 2009.

On 25 October 2007, the Company entered into purchase and sale agreement with 2 sellers to purchase land in the
approximate area of 7 Rai at the total price of Baht 1,504,000. The Company made advance payment amounting to
Baht 261,600 which has been presented as advance payment for purchases of land in the financial statements. The
remaining balance of Baht 1,242,400 will be paid on the date of registration the right of land title deed to the
Company within 24 January 2008.

Apart from the purchase and sale agreement as mentioned above, as at 31 December 2007, the Company had
commitments relating to purchases of machinery and equipment amounted to Baht 9.52 million and USD 0.07
million (31 December 2006 : Baht 9.18 million and EUR 0.37 million).

20 Letters of guarantee

As at 31 December 2007, the Company had letters of guarantee issued by bank on behalf of the Company
amounting to Baht 2.68 million for electricity and telephone usage (31 December 2006 : Baht 2.58 million).

21 Related party transactio

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled
by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
are related parties of the Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel,
including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies
associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.
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21 Related party transactions (Cont

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and
not merely the legal form.

Mr. Apirag Vanich and members of his family are major shareholders. Majority of related companies are controlled
by Mr. Apirag Vanich. The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

a) Sales of goods
For the yearsended

31 December
2007 2006
Baht Baht
Sales of goods 44,550 459,800

The policy for related party transaction is as follows:
Sales of goods are made in the normal course of business and at market prices.

b) Purchases of goods and services

For the years ended

31 December
2007 2006
Baht Baht
Purchases of goods 9,491,767 5,538,675
Purchases of services 6,032,938 4,711,829

The policies for related party transactions are as follows:

- Purchases of palm fruits are made in the normal course of business and at market prices.

- Purchase of services mainly comprise of port charges for export shipping which are made in the normal course
of business and at market price.

¢) Outstanding balances arising from purchases of goods and services

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Outstanding balance from purchases of goods
and services
- Trade accounts payable 108,110 -
- Accrued expense 93,980 740,566
202,090 740,566

Outstanding balance from purchases of goods and services were included in trade account payable and accrued
expenses.
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22 Financial instruments

The principal financial risks faced by the Company at 31 December 2007 are exchange rate risk and credit risk.
Credit risk arises when sales are made on credit terms.

Exchange rate risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk since certain sales are entered into in foreign currencies.
The Company minimises the potential adverse effects of fluctuation currency values on the financial
performance of the Company by using forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge all such export sales
currency risk.

Foreign currency forward contracts protect the Company from movements in exchange rates by establishing
the rate at which a foreign currency accounts receivable will be realised. The foreign currency forward
contracts are not separately recognised in the financial statements at fair value but the contract rate is applied
to the accounts receivable at initial recognition.

Asat 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Company has outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to sell
USD as follows:

2007 2006
Baht Baht

Foreign currency forward contracts - fair value hedges

2007 : US Dollar 2.25 million at rates between 75,545,637
Baht 33.57 to 33.65 = 1 US Dollar

(2006 : US Dollar 1.72 million at rates between 60,867,690
Baht 35.09 to 35.75 =1 US Dollar

Foreign currency forward contracts - cash flow hedges

2007 : US Dollar 2.38 million at rates between 75,861,910
Baht 33.42 to 33.65 =1 US Dollar

(2006 : US Dollar 1.37 million at rates between 49,455,655
Baht 35.09 to 36.54 = 1 US Dollar

155,407,547 110,323,345
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22 Financial instruments (Cont'c

Net fair value of foreign currency forward contracts

The net fair value of the open foreign currency forward contracts at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2007 2006
Baht Baht
Favorable (Unfavorable) forward
foreign exchange contracts, net
- fair value hedge 266,549 (975,685)
- cash flows hedge 205,259 490,346
471,808 (485,339)

The net fair value of foreign currency forward contracts has been calculated, using rates quoted by the
banker, mark to market value, at the balance sheet date.

Trading of financial instruments for speculative purposes is prohibited. Forward foreign exchange counterparties
are confined to the Company's bank.

Credit risk

The Company's exposure to credit risk consists of deposits at financial institutions and trade receivables. The
Company has a concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables from customers in manufacturing
industry. Deposits are placed, with high credit quality financial institutions.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's cash and deposits at financial institutions, trade receivables and
payables and loans to contractors approximate to their fair values.

23 Promotional privileges

Sales, classified as promoted and non-promoted activities, for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are
summarised as follows:

2007
Non-promoted
Promoted activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht
Export sadles 1,454,021,864  2,007,232,923 3,461,254,787
Domestic sales 240,076,254 796,117,920 1,036,194,174
Total saes 1,694,098,118  2,803,350,843 4,497,448,961




d v v
23 ansdszlevunnmslasumsasasumsasy

.. 2549
fomsildsy  Aomsihlldsy
MmIguasy NRL RIGRE 3
1N 1N 1N
§Tﬂqﬁﬂ1ﬂﬂ13"lﬂﬂﬁ'\3®ﬂﬂ 1,189,490,052 637,540,213 1,827,030,265
518 1d0nmsneneluilszmea 779,216,751 257,131,567 1,036,348,318
5'.)11513“1@9{“1]1ﬂﬂﬁsll'lﬂ 1,968,706,803 894,671,780 2,863,378,583

Llli‘)’]’L!‘Vl 16 1Ay N.A. 2539 “]J'i‘]%l“l/lulﬂ51Jﬂ15?)1!11ﬁ1ﬁhlﬁi“u’d1/l‘ﬁﬂi Iﬂ“])’u"lﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂlﬁiﬂﬂ?iﬁﬂﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂm SNITUNIT
’d\uﬁiiJﬂﬁﬁ’lQﬂuiuﬂ1§ﬁﬂﬂu1ﬂuﬂ1ﬁn%1ﬂw% ﬁVI‘ﬁWLﬁHﬂﬁ1ﬂﬂJ 'lﬂL!.ﬂﬂﬁhlﬂi‘]JEJﬂL'Juﬂﬁlﬁﬂ’ﬂ?ﬂﬁ‘ﬂ%‘iﬂﬁ?ﬂiﬂlﬂi’E'Nﬁ]ﬂi
ﬂiillﬂiﬂﬂﬂﬂuﬂTHNuulﬂuﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂfiiﬂﬂilliﬁﬂﬁﬂIlﬂi]ﬁ'lfﬂiﬂi ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ]fﬂi‘ﬂulﬂi“]JﬂﬁﬁQlﬁﬁJlﬂu’i EJNL’)EH 8 1l
u‘UlLfﬂ’Ju‘i/lLiﬂJJJﬁthlﬂmﬂﬂﬁﬂi ZNOUNINT (TL!‘VI 5 AUBIOU WA 2540) L ﬂﬁhlﬂﬁ']JfJﬂL’JuﬂWBN‘I«lhlﬂu@mﬂﬂﬁcluﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂw
50 mmammmﬂﬂmﬂuswmnmaﬂ 5447 uumnmwuﬂmumwawnmum mﬂiumwuﬂmmum 4 NUBIBU W.A. 2548

LIJEJ’JH‘VI 29 AUYIYU W.A. 2542 ‘]Ji‘]elﬂllﬂiUﬂWﬁJullﬁsl‘HVlﬂ'iﬂﬁ“l/l‘ﬁﬂi TEJ“H‘Nflﬂﬂfﬂihlﬂ5Uﬂ1iﬁﬂlﬁiﬂﬂ1‘iﬁﬂ“ﬂuﬁ]1ﬂ
ﬂﬂ!uﬂﬁﬁiJ'miﬁ\‘ilﬁilJﬂ1iﬂW]‘LJLWJJ!GIJJﬁTHi'Ufﬂﬁ!.Wllﬂ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁNaﬁﬂ1iﬁﬂﬂu1llu1hﬁllmﬂw% @nll‘}JGliﬁ\Hﬁﬁllﬂﬁﬁ\?ﬂu L’s’l"ll‘ﬂ 1562/
2542 ﬁﬂﬁWLﬁ‘]&lﬂﬁ?ﬂiUhlmLﬂ ﬂﬁhlﬂ'i‘]JEJﬂL'J‘NﬂﬁLZ‘TEIi’Nf‘l'i‘lﬂl“lﬂﬁTl’iﬂ_ILﬂii’Ni]f‘li ﬂﬁVlﬂi‘]_lfJﬂL’]uﬂTHNublﬂuﬁﬂﬂﬂaﬁTﬁ‘iU
ﬂ1ll§fﬁ’lﬁVlhlﬂ%Wﬂﬂﬁﬂiuﬂﬂ‘]Jﬂi]ﬂﬁ’i/lvlﬂi‘ﬂﬂﬁﬁ\?!ﬁimﬂuﬁwwa!Jﬁﬂ 8 ﬂu‘]J!.m’Ju’millllﬁﬂblﬂinﬂﬂﬁlli‘”ﬂﬂllﬂ%ﬂﬁ (nm
1 Wf]ﬁi]ﬂ1ﬂu W.A. 2543) mefﬂihlﬂi“]JEJﬂL'JlJﬂT]eINu]lﬂu%Uﬂﬂﬁiu@ﬂﬁﬁﬂ&lﬁw 50 *Ui‘Ni‘JG]ﬁﬂTH‘LIﬂmﬂu'i zo211010n 5 1
HUNNANUMHUATZIZIIA WS

Lll?]’]u‘ﬂ 7 DUBIWU WA, 2543 mum"lmumaaum“lw"lm‘umnﬁﬂs TEJ"]?‘L!°’l]1ﬂﬂ1'iﬁ\1!,ﬁillﬂWiﬁ\i‘Vluiﬂﬂﬂmwﬂiillﬂﬁ
ﬁ\ilﬁﬁ%ﬂ1ia\1ﬂuﬁ1ﬁﬁ1JﬂﬁﬁﬂWL!NJ‘LHhﬁN%Wﬂw%ﬁ1ﬂﬁﬂiiﬁxﬂullﬂﬁﬁlﬁn @nN‘UﬁiﬁQLﬁiNﬂ?iﬁﬂ’]u La"ll‘VI 1090/2544
amwmmnamzu"lmm ﬂﬁ“lﬂT]JEJﬂL’J'L.!ﬂﬁlﬁﬂi‘ﬂﬂi"’lﬂlélﬂﬁTH'i‘]JLﬂii‘)\ﬁ]ﬂi ﬂﬁllﬂiﬂﬂﬂnuﬂﬂellﬂuhlﬂu{ﬂ‘llﬂﬂi‘l’fﬂ‘l’ii‘U
ﬂﬂiﬁ‘ﬂ‘ﬁ‘ﬂhlﬂ%Wﬂﬂﬁﬂiwﬂ’é]‘]Jﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂblﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁQLﬁﬂJLﬂuﬁwEJWDE’H 81 UTJLWI’JL!VILilIiJi1ﬂqﬂﬂ1ﬂﬂ1iﬂi ZNOUNINT (’J‘L!’ﬂ 14
Glﬁ'lﬂll W.A. 2547) meﬂﬁhlﬂTUElﬂL’JuﬂWHNu"lﬂuﬁ‘ﬂﬂﬂﬁqluﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬂﬁw 50 ‘Ui’Nﬂﬁi1ﬂ1yﬂﬂmﬂuiwﬂul’m16ﬂ 5 1 Yuan
‘nwumwumwﬂwnmuﬁﬂ

mmuw 15 TUNAN W.A. 2548 ‘]Jﬂ&lWhlﬂiUﬂWiﬂullﬁGlﬁhlﬂillﬁﬂﬁﬂi IEI"]f‘L!iﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁxﬂﬁiﬂﬂﬁa\iﬂu%1ﬂﬂm SNITUNIT
fﬂiﬁ\i!ﬁﬁianﬁa\Wluﬁ?ﬁi'ﬂﬂﬁwﬂﬁmﬁﬂwuﬁTJTéHJL!,ﬂ ﬁuﬂmﬂmn ﬂnJ‘U@]iﬁ'\uﬁiﬂJﬂWiﬁ\Wlu m"U‘VI 1280(2)/2549
?I’Vl‘ﬁWLﬁHV]ﬁ1ﬂiUllﬂL!ﬂ ﬂﬁ"lﬂTIJEJﬂL’J'L!ﬂTiLfTEJi‘JWﬂT’IHLGU1ﬁ1ﬂ5ﬂlﬂii‘Ni]ﬂi mi"lmmmnummm"lﬂuﬂuﬂﬂaams‘u
ﬂ1bliﬁ‘1/lﬁ1/lh1ﬂ%1ﬂﬂﬁ‘lliwﬂﬂ‘uﬂ"ﬂﬂﬁ’ﬂulﬂi‘ﬂﬂﬁﬁ\u’dilliﬂuﬂuhllllﬂllliﬂﬂﬁm 100 mamum‘nu llmmmmmm VIUﬂiJuL’JfJL!
Imvuanawiail ‘L!1JLLG]’J”LJ‘V]L?JJSJSWfJVlﬂiﬂﬂﬂ’li'ﬂiuﬂﬂ'Uﬂfl]ﬂﬁ (’J"L!‘Vl 4 UNIIAN N.F. 2550)

Tuse mmmauamu‘n 31 WUAY WA, 2550 myw"lmumiaum“lw"lmuamﬂs Twumnmsmmmmiamumn
ﬂmwﬂﬁﬁumﬁ’cNmiummwummumiwammﬂwuﬁmamm ﬁuﬂmﬂmu mwmmmmmmwmaw 2138(2)/2549
«mwamumuw 20 WHBY WA 2549 amwmwamm"lmm ms"l,ﬂsuamaunmaﬂmnsmwmmsumimﬁmi
mi“lﬂi1JﬂﬂnunmNu'lﬂu@1‘uﬂﬂammum"lifmﬁm'lmmmﬁﬂﬁ ﬂfJTUﬂﬁ]mi‘ﬂhlﬂiumﬁﬁﬁlﬁiumllﬂuvlmﬂuﬁﬂﬂaw 100
Yo UIUAINY 'hlmmmﬂmm gnuviuiou Tmmuanaunladl Funadudisuiiselaonmalszneuiams wai
y3Enda liiselannmatsenouRsmamutias saesun i

Univanich Annual Report 2007



23 Promotional privileges (Co

2006
Non-promoted
Promoted activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht
Export sales 1,189,490,052 637,540,213 1,827,030,265
Domestic sdles 779,216,751 257,131,567 1,036,348,318
Total sales 1,968,706,803 894,671,780 2,863,378,583

On 16 October 1996, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the Board of Investment (BOI)
for the extraction of palm oil - promotional privilege certificate no. 1062/2540. The main privileges include the
exemption from import duties on machinery, exemption from corporate income tax for the promoted activities for
the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived (5 September 1997), and further exemption of corporate
income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period
which was expired on 4 September 2005.

On 29 September 1999, the Company was approved further promotional privileges from the BOI for the capacity
expansion of extraction of palm oil - promotional privilege certificate no. 1562/2542. The main privileges include the
exemption from import duties on machinery, exemption from corporate income tax for the promoted activities for
the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived (1 November 2000), and further exemption of corporate
income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period.

On 7 September 2000, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for extraction of
palm oil at a new factory - promotional privilege certificate no. 1090/2544. The main privileges include the
exemption of import duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the promoted activities for the
period of 8 years from the date income is first derived (14 October 2004), and further exemption of corporate
income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period.

On 15 December 2005, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for seed and
seedling production - promotional privilege certificate no. 1280(2)/2549. The main privileges include the exemption
of import duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the total promoted activities, but not
exceeding 100% of investment excluding land and working capital, for the period of 8 years from the date income is
first derived (4 January 2007).

During the period ended 31 March 2007, the Company received an approval of another promotional privilege from
the BOI for seed and seedling production - promotional privilege certificate no. 2138(2)/2549 with effective on 20
April 2006. The main privileges include the exemption of import duties on machinery, exemption of corporate
income tax for the total promoted activities, but not exceeding 100% of investment excluding land and working
capital, for the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived. The Company has not derived income from
this promoted activity in this year.
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23 Promotional privileges (Cont'd)

In May 2007, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for electricity from Biogas
promotional privilege certificate no. 1487(9)/2550 and no. 1488(9)/2550. The main privileges include the exemption
of import duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the period of 8 years from the date income is
first derived. The Company has not derived income from this promoted activity in this year.

The Company must comply with conditions and restrictions indicated in the promotional certificates.

24 Segment information

The Company engages in oil palm plantations, palm fruit processing and seed businesses. The sales of palm oil
contributed more than 90% of total revenues, which are the Company's main operations. Sales of the Company
comprised mainly local sales and export to neighbouring countries of which there is no material risks and rewards to
the Company.

In 2007, the Company has invested in the 2 biogas projects at Lamthap Branch and Aoluk Branch following
incentives of the Government. The biogas projects are expected to produce income from the sale of electricity under
the recently announced Government incentives for Very Small Power Producers (VSPP). As at 31 December 2007,
the assets by business segment for biogas projects are under construction amounting to Baht 69 million which has
been presented as assets under construction in the financial statements. The Company has not derived income from
the sale of electricity activity in the year 2007.
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